
 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

December 7
th

, 2015 

 

10:00 AM - Regular Meeting 

 

Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex 

Page 1 of 184



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners December 7
th
, 2015 

  Page 1 of 2 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and 

 all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their 

absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  

Organizational & Regular Meeting 

December 7
th

, 2015 

10:00 A.M. - Regular Meeting 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

 

10:00 AM. Call to Order  .................................................................... County Attorney, John Morrison 
 

 Welcome 

 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance  ........................................... Chairman Michael McLain 

 

ITEM 1 Public Comments - It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length 

and number of comments may be limited at the Chairman’s discretion. 

 

ITEM 2 Consideration of Agenda .................................................. County Attorney, John Morrison 

 

ITEM 3 Organizational Meeting  ................................................... County Attorney, John Morrison 

 

A. Election of Chairman to the Board   ............................................................. (Pg. 4) 

B. Election of Vice Chairman to the Board ....................................................... (Pg. 5) 

 C. Approval of Bonds ................................................................................... (Pg. 6-16) 

D. 2016 State Holiday Schedule   ............................................................... (Pg. 17-18) 

E. 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting Calendar   ............................... (Pg. 19-20) 

 

ITEM 4 New Business - For discussion and possible action 

 

A. Proposed 2016 McClees Consulting Contract ....................................... (Pg. 21-30) 

 

ITEM 5 Consent Agenda - All items listed below are routine and will be approved by one motion. 

Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request of a member of the Board.) 

 

A. Draft Minutes –  

  October 5
th
, 2015 ............................................................... (Attachment A) 

B. Trillium Playground Contract  ............................................................... (Pg. 32-38) 

C. Budget Amendment – Playground Equipment ...................................... (Pg. 39-40) 

D. Budget Amendments - School Resource Officer ................................... (Pg. 41-42) 

E. Tax Collection Report - November........................................................ (Pg. 43-44) 

F. Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases   ...................................................... (Pg. 45-46) 

G. Tax Authorization to Collect (January Renewals) ................................. (Pg. 47-48) 

H. Set Public Hearing – Special Use Permit Application (UDO 2015-10-08) 

 for Outdoor Shooting Range for Law Enforcement .............................. (Pg. 49-96) 

 

 

Page 2 of 184



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners December 7
th
, 2015 

  Page 2 of 2 

ITEM 6 Commissioner's Report - For discussion and possible action 

 

ITEM 7 County Manager's Report - For discussion and possible action 

 

Recess Commissioner's Meeting 

 

SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

 1. Call to Order 

 2. Public Comments 

 3. Consideration of Agenda 

 4. Consent Agenda 

A. Draft Minutes  

  October 5
th
, 2015 ............................................................... (Attachment A) 

B. SCWSD Monthly Report  ...................................................................... (Pg. 97-98) 

 5. Other Matters (For Discussion and possible action.) 

 6. Adjourn 
 

Reconvene Commissioner’s Meeting 

 

ITEM 8 Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies   ................................. (Pg. 99-171) 

 

A. North Carolina’s October Employment Figures Released  ................ (Pg. 100-128) 

B. TDA Audit ......................................................................................... (Pg. 129-154) 

C. NC Department of Commerce   ......................................................... (Pg. 155-156) 

D. Register of Deeds - Monthly Report .................................................. (Pg. 157-158) 

E. Library - Monthly Report .................................................................. (Pg. 159-160)  

F. EMS Reports   .................................................................................... (Pg. 161-171) 

 

ITEM 9 Other Matters - For discussion and possible action 

 

ITEM 10 Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 3 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   3.A 

 

 

 ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   0 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 

 

 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Election of Chairman for the Board 
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The County Attorney will open the floor for nomination(s) for the 

position of Chairman to the Board of Commissioners.   
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

Nominate & Elect Chairman to the Board 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 4 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   3.B 

 

 

 ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   0 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 

 

 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Election of Vice Chairman for the Board 
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The County Attorney will open the floor for nomination(s) for the 

position of Vice Chairman to the Board of Commissioners.   
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

Nominate & Elect Vice Chairman to the Board 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 5 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   3.C 

 

 

 ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   9 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 

 

 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Approval of Bonds 
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Provided below is a list of bonds as required by NCGS 159-29. 

 

Finance Officer 

Treasurer Courthouse/Shiloh Fire Commission 

Treasurer South Mills Fire District 

Treasurer Joyce Creek Drainage District 

Treasurer South Camden Water and Sewer District 

Treasurer Camden Tourism Development Authority 

Board of Commissioners 

Tax Assessor & Collector County 

Sheriff 

Register of Deeds 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 6 of 184



B H

North Carolina

^

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we Stephanie M. Humphries

of

COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound unto County of Camden
in the sum of Five Hundred Fifty Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($ 550,000.00 ),
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by these presents.

Dated this 15th day of January , 2_Q15

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
M appointed • elected to the office of Finance Officer ?
for the term beginning the 15th day of January > 2015 ( and enckHgJtks

cKftX#fX ____ indefinite .

NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties of his office and
shall honestly account for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the said term, then /this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

•:• This bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions
precedent to the right of recovery hereunder:

FIRST: The Surety shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the
failure of or default in payment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
deposited.

SECOND: This bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future liability by giving written notice, by

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee at County of Camden, North Carolina (
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to any liability thereafter arising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for any and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Witness to S

Elizabeth City

Countersigned NOT NEEDED

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

Bond No. 71623157

., North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY

WESTER

Principal

URETY COMPANY

Paul T. Bruflat, Se/ior Vice President

North Carolina Resident Agent

Page 7 of 184



North Carolina

^SS
®

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: Bond No. 71632515

That we Stephanie M. Humphries

of

COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound nnt.n Courthouse/Shiloh Fire Commission
in the sum of Fifty Thousand and_00/_100 __ DOLLARS ($ 50,000.00 ),
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by these presents.

Dated this 3rd Hay nf February 2015

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
[X] appointed • elected to the office of Treasurer >
for the term beginning the 2nd day of February j 2015 and enckHgtfkK

<Mfi$&L indefinite t

NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties of his office and
shall honestly account for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the said term/ then this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

. This bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions
precedent to the right of recovery hereunder:

• FIRST: The Surety shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the
failure of or default in payment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
deposited. ..--^

SECOND: This bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future liability by giving written notice, by
Courthouse/Shiloh Fire

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee at Commission, North Carolina
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to any liability thereafter arising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for any and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Witness to Su

Elizabeth City

cclk
LULL4. /rrt~y

Ux^L^

Countersigned NOT NEEDED

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

., North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY

Principal

WESTER N*-S URETY COMPANY

Paul T. Bruflat, Seafior Vice President

_ North Carolina Resident Agent

m

Page 8 of 184



0P

North Carolina

^SS

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, Stephanie M. Humphries
of

COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound unto South Mills Fire Commission
in the sum of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($ 50,000.00 ),
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by these presents.

Dated this 10th day of February t 2015

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
[X] appointed • elected to the office of Finance Officer >
for the term beginning the 2nd day of February ; 2015 and oockHg}thK

d<Q$Kg$L indefinite

NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties of his office and
shall honestly account for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the said term, then this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

This bond-is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions
precedent to the right of recovery hereunder:

{FIRST: The Surety shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the
failure of or default in payment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
deposited.

SECOND: This bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future liability by giving written notice, by
South Mills Fire Commission,

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee at North Carolina >
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to any liability thereafter arising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for any and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Elizabeth City

Witness to Su

O). A^J^L^rri^
a:nUbUr^

Countersigned NOT NEEDED

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

Bond No. 71636021.

, North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY

Principal

WESTER URETY COMPANY

*^7Tt
Paul T. Bruflat, SejfiorVice President

North Carolina Resident Agent

Page 9 of 184



North Carolina

^
®

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: Bond No. 71636013

That we Stephanie M. Humphries

of

COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound unto Joyce Creek Drainage District
in the sum of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($ 50,000.00 _)?
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by these presents.

Dated this 10th day of February

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
[X] appointed • elected to the office of Finance Officer
for the term beginning the 2nd day of February f 2015 _f and emkHgJthg

d@ip$&. indefinite

NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties of his office and
shall honestly account for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the said term, then/this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

•This bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be condition;
precedent to the right of recovery hereunder:

- FIRST: The Surety shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the
failure of or default in payment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
deposited.

SECOND: This bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future liability by giving written notice, by
Joyce Creek Drainage District,

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee at North Carolina
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to any hability thereafter arising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for any and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Witness to S

Elizabeth City

cakUbUr^

Countersigned NOT NEEDED

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

., North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY

WESTER

Principal

SURETY COMPANY

By <^7Il
Paul T. Bruflat, Senior Vice President

North Carolina Resident Agent

Page 10 of 184



North Carolina

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we Stephanie M. Humphries

of

COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound nntn South Camden Water & Sewer District
in the sum of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($ 50,000.00 )j
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by these presents.

Dated this 10th day of February 201 5

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
[X] appointed • elected to the office of Finance Officer (
for the term beginning the 2nd day of February ( 2015 t and e>ixkHg:*hK

d8$X#gC indefinite f

NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties of his office and
shall honestly account for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the said term, then this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

.-'This bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions
precedent to the right of recovery hereunder:

FIRST: The Surety shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the
failure of or default in payment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
deposited.

SECOND: This bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future liability by giving written notice, by
South Camden Water & Sewer

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee at. District, North Carolina
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to any hability thereafter arising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for any and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Witness to Si

Elizabeth City

9• /^J^Lirrx^

Countersigned _NOT NEEDED

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

JisiiSBSSSggBi

Bond No. 71636017

., North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY

WESTER

Principal

URETY COMPANY

X7~L
Paul T. Bruflat, Senior Vice President
_ North Carolina Resident Agent

Page 11 of 184



North Carolina

^SS

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: Bond No. 71636018

That we, Stephanie M. Humphries

, North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETYof

COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound unto Camden Tourism Development Authority
in the sum of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($ 50,000.00 _)(
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by these presents.

Dated this 10th day of February 2015

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
[X] appointed • elected to the office of Finance Officer (
for the term beginning the 2nd day of February ; 2015 ; and e>ncMHg]thK

c&j$X#|X indefinite f
NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties of his office and

shall honestly account for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the said term, then this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

-.-This bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions
precedent to the right of recovery hereunder:

FIRST: The Surety shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the
failure of or default inpayment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
deposited. .••>^<^

SECOND: This bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future liability by giving written notice, by
Camden Tourism Development

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee nt. Authority, North Carolina
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to any hability thereafter arising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for any and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Witness to Si

Elizabeth City

Countersigned _NO_T NEEDED

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

Principal

WESTER URETY COMPANY

By c^CZD.
Paul T. Bruflat, Sejfior Vice President

North Carolina Resident Agent

Page 12 of 184



NOTICE OF PREMIUM DUE
CNA

Phone: 1-888-866*2666
Fax: 1-605-335-0357
Email: uwservices@cnasurety.com

Company*: 0601
Bond/Policy#: 58269823

IOM loo - 5SMrv^=^ Bj,,in9 Date: 10/09/2015
^. . __T_ rrn^Q Due Date: 12/14/2015

pwgzzs™ board °f coMM.ssT^^r«rhSdpr*rP. O. BOX 190
CAMDEN, NC 27921

Premium:Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. $220.00

Amount Due: $220.00 [
We show 52 rated for premium purposes.
To ensure proper coverage, verify the
total number of employees and owners
covered &contact us with changes. Note:
Afterseveral years, we may have increased
our rates slightly.

Company*: 0601
Bond/Policy*: 58269823
Effective Date: 12/14/2015
Bond amount: $15,000.00
Name: CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Description: NCPEFPBP#4

Anniversary Date: 12/14/2016

Written By: WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

Sn1^™^^"^th?we bill your bond/policy directly from our office. PLEASE PAY THE AMOUNT
SESflSJ "^ ,f ?*IS are.neWal' P,ease 8UbmJt Pfiyment at teast "">weeks Prior to the duedate to ensure proper and timely renewal of your bond/policy coverage.

If you have any questions, please contact your agent with whom the bond/policy was written.
Phone: (252)338-3322
Agency Code: 32-17563

Bankers Insurance. LLC
P. O. Box 2589
Elizabeth City, NC 27906-2589

YOU CAN PAY ONLINE BYVISITING ONLINEPAY.CNASURETY.COM

Please detach and return the coupon below with your payment. Please send payment to the address below
For overnight payments pleasecall1-888-866-2666. aaaress oeiow.

;NA Surety
Company*: 0601
Bond/Policy#: 58269823 Effective Date: 12/14/2015
Name: CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OFCOMMISSIONERS
Description: NCPEFPBP#4
Written By: WESTERN SURETY COMPANY
Agency Code:32-17563 Bankers Insurance, LLC

Make Check PayableTo CNA Surety

CNA Surety Direct Bill
P.O. Box 957312
St Louis, MO 63195-7312

•

Amount Due: $220.00

Check here If changes needed
and explain below.

0003001 0321?5b3000012m2015 00^01005021,162300 00000002200001

Page 13 of 184



NOTICE OF PREMIUM DUE
********************************

TONY E. PERRY
P. O. BOX 190
CAMDEN, NC 27921

Company*: 0601
Bond/Policy#: 69151419
Effective Date: 12/15/2015
Bond amount: $25,000.00
Name: TONY E. PERRY
Description: NC SHERIFF COUNTY OFCAMDEN

Anniversary Date: 12/15/2016

GMA
Phone: 1-888-866-2666
Fax: 1-605-335-0357
Email: uwservices@cnasurety.com

Company*: 0601
Bond/Policy#: 69151419
Billing Date: 10/09/2015
Due Date: 12/15/2015

Premium: $125.00

Amount Due: $125.00

K>5ioo- 5-5HOOO
This instrument has been preaudited

In the manner required by tbt
Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

2
ture of Finance Officer

Written By: WESTERN SURETY COMPANY
Your agent has requested that we biil your bond/policy directly from our office. PLEASE PAY THE AMOUNT
INDICATED to CNA Surety. If this is a renewal, please submit payment at leasttwo weeks prior to the due
date to ensure properand timely renewal of your bond/policy coverage.

If you have any questions, please contact your agent with whom the bond/policy was written.

Phone: (252)338-3322 Bankers Insurance, LLC
Agency Code: 32-17563 P. O. BOX 2589 MM„ ^nf%
y y Elizabeth City, NC 27906-2589

YOU CAN PAY ONLINE BY VISITING ONLINEPAY.CNASURETY.COM

Please detach and return thecoupon below with your payment. Please send payment to theaddress below.
For overnight payments please call 1-888-866-2666.

CNA Surety
Company*: 0601
Bond/Policy*: 69151419
Name: TONY E. PERRY
Description: NC SHERIFF COUNTY OFCAMDEN
Written By: WESTERN SURETY COMPANY
Agency Code: 32-17563 Bankers Insurance, LLC

Make Check Payable To CNA Surety

Effective Date: 12/15/2015

CNA Surety Direct Bill
P.O. Box 957312
St Louis. MO 63195-7312

•

Amount Due: $125.00 I

Check here if changes needed
and explain below.

0003001 D32175b3000012152015 OObOlOOb^lSlHnOO 00000001250001

Page 14 of 184



North Carolina

^S

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we Tammie Krauss

Bond No. 71631695

of Camden North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY
COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound unto County of Camden
in the sum of Twenty-Five Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($ 25,000.00 _),
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by these presents.

Dated this 2nd day of February 2015 .

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
M appointed • elected to the office of Register of Deeds ^
for the term beginning the 2nd day of January ; 2015 >and ending the

6th day of December f 2017 .
NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties of his office and

shall honestly account for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the said term, then this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

"This bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions
precedent to the right of recovery hereunder:

• FIRST: The Surety shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the
failure of or default in payment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
deposited.

SECOND: This bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future liability by giving written notice, by

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee at County of Camden, North Carolina y
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to any liability thereafter arising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for anv and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Witness to Su

U- UUXA\,

Countersigned NOT NEEDED

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

Principal

WESTER URETY COMPANY

By ^LTZl
Paul T. Bruflat. Senior Vice President

North Carolina Resident Agent

Page 15 of 184



s
North Carolina

Western Surety Company
OFFICIAL BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: Bond No. 71345335

of.

That we, Lisa Sawyer Anderson
Camden ., North Carolina, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY

COMPANY, a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, as Surety, are held
and firmly bound unto County of Camden
in the sum of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 DOLLARS ($ 50,000.00 )t
for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, jointly
and severally by thfc&e presents.

Dated this ____7_th____ day of November sm o

THE CONDITION OF THEABOVE OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That whereas, the said Principal has been
• appointed • elected tothe office of Tax Assessor &Collector t
for the termbeginning the 7th dayof November t 2012 tand eatiiHjp&K

d8$X2®C indefinite f
NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall in all things faithfully perform the duties ofhis office and

shall h^ne£ig£a^unt for all moneys and effects that may come into his hands in his official capacity during
the<^^Fm/.^e^^is obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.
^^psJbp0to e?sg£hted by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions

pj^efljptto the*AgK£af recovery hereunder:
§3JIkST: The SyrcS' shall not be liable for the loss of any public moneys or funds resulting from the

f^ES^e.c^^ft^ah> jS^ayment by any Banks or Depositories in which any public moneys or funds have been
de^mbcL .Xff?^

^^I^^^A^ bond may be cancelled by the Surety as to future hability by giving written notice, by
County of Camden, North

certified mail, addressed to each, the Principal and the Obligee at Carolina (
and thirty (30) days after the mailing of said notices by certified mail, this bond shall be cancelled and null
and void as to anyliability thereafterarising, the Surety remaining liable, however, subject to all the terms
and conditions of this bond for any and all acts covered by this bond up to the date of such cancellation.

Witness to Principal

Witness to S

(X - UlJbUX.
Countersigned not needed

Approved this day of

Form 1264-A-11-2002

Principal

URETY COMPANY

TILc*r>(-
Paul T. Bruflat, Sejfior Vice President

North Carolina Resident Agent

30K3<3CK3000aCV3CK3<3 WIS'

Page 16 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

Item Number:   3.D 

 

 

 ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   9 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 

 
 

ITEM TITLE:   The 2016 State Holiday Schedule 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The board must review and adopted 2016 State Holiday Schedule. 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

Review & Adopt 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 17 of 184



State of North Carolina

Office of State Personnel
1331 MAIL SERVICE CENTER • RALEIGH, NC 27699-1331

pat mccrory

Governor

C. Neal Alexander, Jr.
State Personnel Director

TO: Agency Heads and Chancellors

FROM: Neal Alexander Jr.

DATE: January 24,2013

SUBJECT: 2016 Holiday Schedule

Listed beloware the holidays that will be observed by State employees during 2016.

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday

Good Friday

Memorial Day

Independence Day

Labor Day

Veteran's Day

Thanksgiving

Christmas

January 1, 2016

January 18, 2016

March 25, 2016

May 30, 2016

July 4„ 2016

September 5, 2016

November 11, 2016

November 24 &25, 2016

December 23, 26 A 27. 2016

Friday

Monday

Friday

Monday

Monday

Monday

Friday

Thursday and Friday

Friday, Monday and Tuesday

NOTE* The schedule shall beused by all State agencies operating under the policies, rules and
regulations of the Office of State Personnel. Institutions of higher education and agencies requiring a
twenty-four hour operation mayadopt varying holiday schedules in keeping with operational needs, provided
the employees are given the same number of holidays as approved by the State Personnel Commission. Such
special holiday schedules must be filed with the Office of State Personnel.

It is recognized that some agencies may need to adopt an additional holiday schedule applicable to employees
working in twenty-four hour operation; this schedule would designate as holidays the specific dates of the legal
observances rather than the substitute weekdays when the observance occurs on Saturday or Sunday. This
would be in keeping with the purpose of the holiday premium pay policy.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
Location: 116 West Jones Street • RALEIGH, NC • Telephone: (919) 807-4800

WWW.OSP.STATE.NC.US

Page 18 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

Item Number:   3.E 

 

 

 ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 

 
 

ITEM TITLE:   The 2016 BOC Meeting Calendar 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The board must review and approve the  2016 Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting Schedule. 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 19 of 184



Monday, January 04, 2016 7:00 PM Monday, December 28, 2015 5:00 PM

Tuesday, January 19, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, January 12, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, February 01, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, January 26, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, March 07, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, March 01, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, March 21, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, March 15, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, April 04, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, March 29, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, May 02, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, April 26, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, May 16, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, May 10, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, June 06, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, May 31, 2016 5:00 PM

Tuesday, July 05, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, June 28, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, July 18, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, July 12, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, August 01, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, July 26, 2016 5:00 PM

Tuesday, September 06, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, August 30, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, September 19, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, September 13, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, October 03, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, September 27, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, November 07, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, November 01, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, November 21, 2016 7:00 PM Tuesday, November 15, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, December 05, 2016 8:00 AM Tuesday, November 29, 2016 5:00 PM

Monday, January 02, 2017 7:00 PM Thursday, December 22, 2016 5:00 PM

MEETING DATE & TIME AGENDA ITEMS DEADLINE

DURING ANY MONTH WITH ONLY ONE SCHEDULED MEETING, AN ADDITIONAL 

MEETING MAY BE SCHEDULED IF THE WORKLOAD IS ADEQUATE.

MEETING CALENDAR

2016

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ACCOMMODATION REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 

MEETING BY CALLING THE CLERK AT (252)338-6363 x100.   

Page 20 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

Item Number:   4.A 

 

 

 NEW BUSINESS 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   2 (9 Pages) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 

 
 

ITEM TITLE:   McClees Consulting Contract 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
On January 5th 2015 we entered a contractual agreement for lobbying services 

from McClees Consulting Inc. The current contract is due to expire December 

31st, 2015.  Attached is the proposed contract for 2016. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 21 of 184



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CAMDEN 

CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT 
FOR SERVICES BY  

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 THIS CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT for services by an independent contractor 

(herein referred to as the "Contract") is made and entered into this ______ day of ___________, 

2015, by and between CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA (herein "Client") and 

McCLEES CONSULTING, INC., of Pamlico County, NC (herein "Consultant"). 

BACKGROUND 

 Client is a duly organized county of the State of North Carolina, and having as its 

principal address: 330 East Highway 158, PO Box 190, Camden, NC 27921. 

 Consultant is a corporation, incorporated and operating under the laws of North Carolina, 

and having as its principal address: 45 White Farm Road, PO Box 430, Oriental, NC 28571. 

 Client is in need of the expertise and services of Consultant to lobby on behalf of Client.  

Consultant has experience in lobbying, is familiar with the goals of Client, is familiar with 

coastal and eastern North Carolina issues, and has skills, knowledge, abilities, and experience to 

benefit Client. 

 The parties desire to enter into this lobbying agreement. 

 THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the agreements, stipulations, and 

covenants herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is 

hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 1.   Consultation. 

  (a) Client hereby engages Consultant to render lobbying services and Consultant 

agrees to provide such services upon the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

Page 22 of 184



  (b) Consultant is being retained because of the personal skill, expertise, and 

experience of Joseph D. McClees.  All services to be performed under this Contract shall be 

performed personally by Joseph D. McClees with the assistance of S. Henri McClees, Attorney 

at Law, unless Client gives its prior written consent to another arrangement. 

  (c) Consultant shall report to Michael Renshaw, Camden County Manager.  

 2.   Term.  The term of the Contract shall begin on the first day of January, 2016 and 

continue through December 31, 2016. 

 3.   Consulting Fees.  Client shall pay to Consultant fees for services as follows: 

  (a) The sum of Seventeen Thousand Five Dollars ($17,500.00) for lobbying 

services, payable in payments of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) on or before the tenth day of 

January, February, and March, 2016; and, further, a final payment of Two Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars on or before the tenth day of April, 2016; and, further,  

  (b) Client shall pay for lobbyists and principal 2016 registration fees due to the 

State of North Carolina, totaling Seven Hundred Fifty Six Dollars ($756.00), payable at the time 

of the execution of this Contract and in any event before January 11, 2016; and, further, 

  (c) Reimbursement of travel expenses for approved out of state travel, when 

incurred upon the specific direction of the Client, including mileage and reimbursement for 

actual expenses for lodging, food, and taxis, together with other approved transportation, if any. 

  (d) The parties agree there will be no reimbursement for in-state travel or other in-

state expenses except as set forth herein or in-state expenses directed by Client to be spent for 

specific purposes agreed upon in advance of any such expenditure. 

 4.  Independent Contractor.  The parties acknowledge and agree the relationship of 

Consultant with Client is that of independent contractor.  Except as provided in this Contract, 

Page 23 of 184



neither party shall exercise any control over the activities and operations of the other.  Neither 

Client nor Consultant is liable or responsible for the acts, omissions, or defaults of the other in 

any manner.  Consultant, as well as any employees or independent contractors of Consultant, 

shall not be considered, under the provisions of this Contract or otherwise, to be employees of 

Client for any purpose whatsoever. 

 5. Compliance with North Carolina lobbying and ethics laws. The parties hereto agree 

to comply with all reporting, lobbying, and ethics requirements set forth in Chapter 120C 

“Lobbying” and Chapter 138A “State Government Ethics Act” of the NC General Statutes, 

specifically including NCGS §120C et seq. and §138A-1 et seq. Further, the parties hereto agree 

to the following: 

  (a) Consultant will prepare all lobbying authorizations, registrations, expense 

reports, and submit principal authorizations and expense reports to Client for execution and 

timely submission to the NC Secretary of State Lobbying Compliance Division. 

  (b) Client will review, sign, and submit on a timely basis all required lobbying 

authorizations and expense reports. The County Manager will execute all required lobbying 

documentation on behalf of Client. 

 6.  Applicable Law.  The laws of North Carolina shall govern this Contract. 

 7.  Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This Contract supersedes all prior understandings 

and agreements and informal working arrangements between the parties, written and oral.  This 

Contract may not be amended orally, but only by a writing duly executed by both parties. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract the day and year first 

written above. 

Page 24 of 184



COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 
 
By_______________________________ 
P. Michael McLain, Chairman 
Camden County Commissioners 
 
This contract has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
Camden Finance Officer:  ________________  Date: ______________ 
 
McCLEES CONSULTING, INC. 
By ______________________________ 
Joseph D. McClees, President 
 
Attest: ___________________________ 
S. Henri McClees, Secretary 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CAMDEN 
  I,                               , a Notary Public in and for the said County and State, do 
hereby certify that P. Michael McLain, who is personally known to me, appeared before me as a 
duly authorized agent of Camden County, NC on this date and acknowledged the due execution 
of the foregoing contract. 
  WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this the ____ day of _____________, 2015. 
 _______________________________                                          
Notary Public 
 
My commission expires: 
_____________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
  I,                                                  , a Notary Public in and for the said County and 
State, do hereby certify that Joseph D. McClees, President and S. Henri McClees, Secretary of 
McClees Consulting, Inc., respectively, both known to me, each appeared before me this date 
and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing contract. 
  WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this the ____ day of _____________, 2015. 
______________________________                                   
Notary Public 
 
My commission expires: 
_____________________ 
             

Page 25 of 184



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CAMDEN

CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT

FOR SERVICES BY

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

THIS CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT for services by an independent contractor

(herein referred to as the "Contract") is made and entered into ibis{^jjfa day of(JqQ(f\ru .

201^5, by and between CAMDEN COUNTY. NORTH CAROLINA, a body politic (herein

"Client") and McCLEES CONSULTING, INC.. of Pamlico County, NC (herein "Consultant").

BACKGROUND

Client is a duly organized county of the State of North Carolina, and having as its

principal address: 330 East Highway 158, PO Box 190, Camden, NC 27921.

Consultant is a corporation, incorporated and operating under the laws of North Carolina,

and having as its principal address: 45 White Farm Road, PO Box 430, Oriental, NC 28571.

Client is in need of the expertise and services of Consultant to lobby on behalf of Client.

Consultant has experience in lobbying, is familiar with the goals of Client, is familiar with

coastal and eastern North Carolina issues, and has skills, knowledge, abilities, and experience to

benefit Client.

The parties desire to enter into this lobbying agreement.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the agreements, stipulations, and

covenants herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is

hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Consultation.

(a) Client hereby engages Consultant to render lobbying services and Consultant

agrees to provide such services upon the terms and conditions of this Contract.
l

Page 26 of 184



(b) Consultant is being retained because of the personal skill, expertise, and

experience of Joseph D. McClees. All services to be performed under this Contract shall be

performed personally by Joseph D. McCleeswith the assistanceof S. Henri McClees, Attorney

at Law, unless Client gives its prior written consent to another arrangement.

(c) Consultant shall report to Michael Renshaw, Camden County Manager.

2. Term. The term of the Contract shall begin on January 6, 2015 and continue through

December 31,2015.

3. Consulting Fees, Client shall pay to Consultant fees for services as follows:

(a) The sum of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) for lobbying services,

payable in three equal payments of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) per payment, payable

upon execution in January 2015 and then on or before the first days of February, and March,

2015; and, further,

(b) Client shall pay for lobbyists and principal 2015 registration fees due to the

State ofNorth Carolina, totaling Four Hundred Fifty Dollars ($450.00), payable at the time of the

execution of this Contract and in any event before January 14,2015; and, further,

(c) Reimbursement of travel expenses for approved out of state travel, when

incurred upon the specific direction of the Client, including mileage and reimbursement for

actual expenses for lodging, food, and taxis, together with other approved transportation, if any.

(d) The parties agree there will be no reimbursement for in-state travel or other in

state expenses except as set forth herein or in-state expenses directed by Client to be spent for

specific purposes agreed upon in advance of any such expenditure.

4. Independent Contractor. The parties acknowledge and agree the relationship of

Consultant with Client is that of independent contractor. Except as provided in this Contract,
2

Page 27 of 184



neitherparty shall exercise any control over the activitiesand operations of the other. Neither

Client nor Consultant is liable or responsible for the acts, omissions, or defaults of the other in

any manner. Consultant, as well as any employees or independent contractors of Consultant,

shall not be considered, under the provisions of this Contract or otherwise, to be employees of

Client for any purpose whatsoever.

5. Compliance with North Carolina lobbying and ethics laws. The parties hereto agree

to comply with all reporting, lobbying, and ethics requirements set forth in Chapter 120C

"Lobbying" and Chapter 138A "State Government Ethics Act" of the NC General Statutes,

specifically including NCGS §120C et seq. and §138A-1 et seq. Further, the parties hereto agree

to the following:

(a) Consultant will prepare all lobbying authorizations, registrations, expense

reports, and submit principal authorizations and expense reports to Client for execution and

timely submission to the NC Secretary of State Lobbying Compliance Division.

(b) Client will review, sign, and submit on a timely basis all required lobbying

authorizations and expense reports.

6. Applicable Law. The laws of North Carolina shall govern this Contract.

7. Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Contract supersedes all prior understandings

and agreements and informal working arrangements between the parties, written and oral. This

Contract may not be amended orally, but only by a writing duly executed by both parties.

Page 28 of 184



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract the day and year first written

above.

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA

Chairman, Camden County Commissioners
This contract has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and
Fiscal Control Act.

Camden Finance Officer: ^jT^c^s^Date: 1to
,JSULTING.INC

By C^Q^&^A-l) rjsy(
Josenl/fi. McClees, President

fnri McClees, Secretary

15.

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CAMDEN .

I, Stephanie POgcffgpa Notary Public in and for the said County and State, do
hereby certify that p. WwcV)ae\ pf\cLfrir\ wno ls personally known to me,
appeared before me as a duly authorized agent of Camden County, NC on this date and
acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing contract.

2015 .
WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this the b day of CTa nnfl^i

^

Jotary* PublicNotary

My commission expires:

OFFICIAL SEAL
NotaryPublic, NorthCarolina

County of Camden
STEPHANIE B.JACKSON

iCommission Expires uj[2sL2Ql£

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF PAMLICO

I. cllliSfa tL dHOIS . aNotary Public in and for the said County and
State, do hereby certify that JOSEPH D. McCLEES, President and S. HENRI MCCLEES,
Secretary of McClees Consulting. Inc.. respectively, both known to me, each appeared before me
this date and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing contract.

Page 29 of 184



WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this the H day of fepfrUfri/L
2015. tf

Not^f Public / <^ %£.

My commission expires: r +- z

'"nun****

Page 30 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

Item Number:   5.A 

 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 

 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Draft Minutes 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

October 5
th

, 2015 Draft Minutes 

 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  

Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 31 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:  5.B  

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015  

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: County Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Contract Approval 
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY:  

 

Contract approval for grant from Trillium for handicap accessible 

playground/equipment. 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 

 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 32 of 184



Contract # 0055T-000-FY16 
Cost Center #  

Line Item #  
Obligated  

Date Entered  
  

TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES HEALTH RESOURCES 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
 
CONTRACT PERIOD: September 18, 2015 – June 30, 2016  
 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this the 18th day of September 2015 and between 
Trillium Health Resources, an Area Authority organized and existing pursuant to North 
Carolina Statutes, Chapter 122C, whose mailing address is 1708 E. Arlington Boulevard, 
Greenville, NC 27858, ID # 56-0898928, and Camden County Parks and Recreation through 
County of Camden (hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACTEE"), whose mailing address is 
PO Box 190, Camden, NC 27921, Phone Number 252-338-1919 ext.239 and whose tax 
identification number (or social security number) is 56-6000282. 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
For and in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth, the parties intending to be 
legally bound do hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. The CONTRACTEE does hereby agree to provide the following services to TRILLIUM 

HEALTH RESOURCES : 
 

CONTRACTEE will manage and ensure the construction and ongoing 
maintenance of an inclusive playground at Community Park: 117 N. Carolina Hwy 
343 S., Camden, NC 27921. The CONTRACTEE will need to get approval from 
TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES and send to Amy Corbitt at 
Amy.Corbitt@trilliumnc.org for approval by the Trillium Health Resources  
Project Team to ensure the playground is TRULY Inclusive before any purchases 
are made.   

• Submit playground layouts for approval no later than December 31st, 2015 
• Construction to start as soon as possible after receiving approval from 

Trillium Health Resources on playgrounds to be completed by June 30th, 
2016 

• Trillium Health Resources will have no ongoing commitment to the 
playground once construction is complete. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 184

mailto:Amy.Corbitt@trilliumnc.org


2. TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES agrees to pay to the CONTRACTEE, for the 
services set forth in paragraph 1 of this agreement, as follows: 

 
 

a. A maximum of $125,000.00. 
 

b. This funding allocation is for actual expenditures. 
 

c. If a deposit is required for any portion of the funding it will require prior 
approval from Trillium Health Resources in writing. 

 
d. Invoices are due by the 10th of the month following the month services were 

provided.  Each invoice shall have an attestation/certification statement that 
states the following:  “I hereby attest or certify that the services reported for 
payment are correct and have been performed according to the terms of the 
contract.”  This statement shall be signed and dated by the CONTRACTEE.  
  

e. Each invoice shall have the name of the playground. 
 

f. Invoices will be sent to - Attention:  Accounts Payable, at 144 Community 
College Road, Ahoskie, NC 27910-9320, or accountspayable@trilliumnc.org.  
Payment shall be made to the CONTRACTEE within thirty (30) days from 
the receipt date of approved, accurate and complete invoicing.  

 
g. Invoicing that is received after sixty (60) days from the deadline will not be 

processed. 
 
3. It is expressly understood and agreed that in carrying out the services to be performed 

hereunder: 
 

a. The CONTRACTEE shall furnish, at CONTRACTEE's own cost and expense, 
CONTRACTEE's own materials and supplies required to carry out 
CONTRACTEE's duties hereunder, except as otherwise expressly provided in 
paragraph 2 above;  

b. Any and all other expenses incurred by the CONTRACTEE in performing the 
required services shall be at the CONTRACTEE's sole cost and expense; 

c. The CONTRACTEE will work at such times and for such hours as TRILLIUM 
HEALTH RESOURCES deems necessary for the fulfillment of the contract.  

d. The CONTRACTEE shall be an independent contractor and not an employee with 
respect to TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES , and the CONTRACTEE shall 
have all of the rights and duties, and all of the discretion normally associated with 
such relationship 
 

e. If reimbursement of funds is required by Medicaid, the State of North Carolina or 
TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES, due to negligent record keeping, or documentation 
by the CONTRACTEE or a failure by the CONTRACTEE to comply with minimum 

Page 34 of 184

mailto:accountspayable@trilliumnc.org


standards, APSM 30-1, or to follow licensure or accreditation requirements or Medicaid 
requirements, the CONTRACTEE will be responsible for the reimbursement of all such 
funds including administrative overhead within 30 days of notification.4. TRILLIUM 
HEALTH RESOURCES Trillium Health Resources is required to provide to the 
CONTRACTEE all pertinent rules, regulations, standards and other information 
distributed by the Division necessary for the performance of the CONTRACTEE under 
the terms of the contract.  TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES is required to monitor the 
contract to assure compliance with rules of the Commission, the Secretary and G.S. 
122C-142. 

 
5. TERMINATION.  This agreement may be terminated under the following circumstances: 
 

A. TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES may terminate the agreement immediately if 
funds granted for the program are revoked or terminated by the funding agencies in a 
manner beyond the control of TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES  for the duration 
of the contract period.  In this situation, any and all of the obligations of the 
TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES  and the CONTRACTEE under this contract 
shall immediately cease. 
 

B. The contract may be terminated immediately by either party with cause upon written 
notice to the other party and with written documentation to the other party detailing 
the grounds for termination. TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES  agrees to 
compensate the CONTRACTEE for services performed under this contract prior to 
the date of termination. 

 
C. TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES  may terminate this contract immediately upon 

notice to the CONTRACTEE, without cause, in its sole discretion.  TRILLIUM 
HEALTH RESOURCES  agrees to compensate the CONTRACTEE for services 
performed under this contract prior to the date of termination. 

 
D. If this Contract is for a period greater than thirty (30) days, it may also be terminated 

at any time upon mutual consent of both parties or after thirty (30) days upon notice 
of termination by one of the contracting parties. 

 
E. If a dispute arises between CONTRACTEE and TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES 

with regard to the terms of this Agreement, and such dispute cannot be resolved by 
mutual agreement, TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES shall exercise its rights of 
termination under subparagraph (b) above.  

 
F. If time sheet, billing documentation, and notes are not received on deadlines given in 

paragraph 2 above it will be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  NOT 
APPLICABLE 

 
 
 

Page 35 of 184



6. The parties hereto agree that TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES  may in its discretion 
withhold from any or all of the payments made pursuant to paragraph 2 hereof any 
amounts which TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES deems necessary for compliance 
with any state or federal laws or regulations, including without limitation, the Internal 
Revenue Code, as amended. 

 
7. The CONTRACTEE and TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES shall indemnify and hold 

harmless each other and their designated representatives from any and all claims, suits, 
actions, and liabilities caused by the CONTRACTEE’s performance of work pursuant to 
this agreement.  
 

8. In addition to the foregoing, the following terms and conditions shall be a part of this 
contract:   

   
CONTRACTEE agrees to acknowledge TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES as the 
funding source in any brochures, advertising, trainings, or other information distributed 
to the public. CONTRACTEE should not use the TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES 
name on any literature without obtaining prior written approval from TRILLIUM 
HEALTH RESOURCES. 

 
9. This Agreement shall be construed according to and governed by the laws of the State of 

North Carolina, notwithstanding the fact that both or either of the parties hereto is or may 
become a resident or citizen of another state or country. 

 
10. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties hereto.  No modification, 

amendment, change or discharge of any terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be 
valid or binding unless the same is in writing and signed by both the parties hereto.  No 
waiver of any of the terms of the Agreement shall be valid unless signed by the party 
against whom each such waiver is asserted.  Any waiver of any provision of this 
Agreement in any instance shall not be a waiver in any other instance; and according to 
policy adopted by TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES, CONTRACTEE shall not be 
restricted to fund balance limitations. 

 
11. CONTRACTEE is responsible for the adoption, assessment, collection and disposition of 

fees, if applicable, in accordance with G.S. 122C-146. 
 
12. If applicable, equipment purchased with non-unit-cost reimbursement funds, such as 

startup or special purpose funding, title to assets purchased under the contract in whole or 
in part rests with TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES so long as that party continues to 
provide the services which were supported by the contract.  If such services are 
discontinued, disposition of the assets shall occur as approved by the Division. NOT 
APPLICABLE 

 
 
 

Page 36 of 184



13. If applicable, the CONTRACTEE shall provide TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES 
with consumer records and data about individual consumers for purpose of monitoring, 
research and study, financial audits of third party payors, research and evaluation. NOT 
APPLICABLE 

 
14. When applicable, the CONTRACTEE shall make available to TRILLIUM HEALTH 

RESOURCES  its accounting records for the purpose of audit by State authorities and 
that the party will, when required by general statute or in accordance with the annual 
Memorandum of Agreement, have an annual audit by an independent certified public 
accountant and submit to the TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES  two (2) copies of the 
audit report within (90) days of the end of the CONTRACTEE’s previous fiscal year, of 
which one copy shall be forwarded to the Office of the State Auditor at 300 N. Salisbury 
Street, Raleigh, NC 27603-5903. 

 
15. CONTRACTEE agrees to secure and maintain all appropriate insurance, including 

worker’s compensation, general liability and property damage and agrees to provide 
TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES with proof of such insurance upon receipt. 

 
16. This contract shall contain no stricken and initialed provisions, other than for correction 

of minor clerical errors.  Any stricken and initialed provisions shall not be deemed 
removed from this contract, and the contract shall be interpreted as if such provisions had 
not been stricken.  Both parties to the contract must initial corrections of clerical errors.   

 
17. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).  The CONTRACTEE and 

TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES  shall be in compliance with the final HIPAA rules 
and regulations and each party shall provide evidence to the other party of this 
compliance upon request.  The parties hereto specifically agree to amend this Agreement 
on a timely basis as necessary to comply with any and all laws relating to privacy of 
healthcare information, including the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
of 1996 (HIPAA). If the parties are unable to agree to such amendments, they agree to 
participate in mediation.  If the parties are still unable to agree, the Agreement will 
terminate in accordance with Section 5 b of the agreement prior to the effective date(s) 
for compliance with such privacy laws. If applicable the Business Associate Agreement 
must be signed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37 of 184



18. Comply with all Confidentiality Rules and Requirements in accordance with N.C.G.S. 
122C-51 through 122C-56.   The CONTRACTEE agrees to keep these matters 
confidential and to discuss them with only the appropriate TRILLIUM HEALTH 
RESOURCES staff member or other professional people designated by TRILLIUM 
HEALTH RESOURCES.  The CONTRACTEE has read and signed the Confidentiality 
Rules required of Mental Health Centers. 
 
 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act, General Statute, 159. 
 
 

SIGNATURES FOR TRILLIUM 
HEALTH RESOURCES  

  SIGNATURES FOR CONTRACTEE 

    
    
Leza Wainwright, CEO   Mike Renshaw, Camden County 
   Manager 
    
Date   Date 
    
    
Joy Futrell, Vice President,  
Business Operations 

   

    
    
Date    

 
 

Page 38 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:  5.B    

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015  

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Budget & Finance Officers 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Budget Amendment 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY:  

 

Appropriation must be made for the grant received from Trillium for 

playground equipment. 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 

 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 39 of 184



                               2015-16-BA008 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the Community Park Fund as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

Revenues  

65330613-439764 Park Grant   $125,000 

 

Expenses 

656130-574095 Playground   $125,000 

 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds for the grant received from 

Trillium for Handicap Accessible Playground Equipment. 

 

 

This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of December, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 40 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:  5.D 

 

Consent Agenda 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015  

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tony Perry, Sheriff 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Budget Amendment 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY:  

 

Sheriff is requesting a budget amendment to move funds from within 

the Sheriff Budget to the School Resource Officer (SRO) budget into 

salaries. A new hire will be paid at a higher rate than what was 

budgeted due to the new hires’ extensive experience in law enforcement 

and teaching abilities. The amount to be moved into the SRO budget is 

$4,212.00.  
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

APPROVAL 
 

 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 41 of 184



                               2015-16-BA009 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

Expenses 

105100 - 503000  Part time salaries          $2,000 

105100-516100 Maintenance Radios         $1,000 

105100-526000 Advertise           $   400 

105100-531000 Gas & Oil           $   812 

 

105110 - 502000 Salaries       $4,212 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds for additional salary of the new 

School Resource Officer. 

 

 

This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of December, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 42 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.E 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Collection Report  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Collection Report 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 43 of 184



  
                                         Tax  Collection  Report 

November   2015

Day Amount Amount Name of Account Deposits
2 18,580.22 7,421.17                $280.59 - Refund / $1.00 - short 26,001.39
3 24,062.41 24,062.41
4 9,877.12 9,877.12
5 16,642.51 16,642.51
6 16,852.11  $7.80 - Refund 16,852.11
9 33,254.26  $2.12 - Refund 33,254.26
10 6,253.06 6,253.06
12 20,392.31 20,392.31

529,296.16 529,296.16
13 18,016.59 18,016.59
16 20,882.82 20,882.82

210,733.46 225,914.97  $1,090.63 - Refund 436,648.43
17 22,667.57 22,667.57

1,247,215.28 8,447.84  $2,129.04 - Refund 1,255,663.12
18 15,674.71  $0.10 - Refund/$0.70 - short 15,674.71
19 19,696.07 19,696.07
20 12,223.70 12,223.70
23 32,354.81  $13.51 - Refund 32,354.81
24 5,456.80  $0.03 - Over 5,456.80
25 23,947.75  $595.11 - Refund 23,947.75

1,206.92  $33.50 - Refund
30 22,837.52 15,991.48  $21.97 - Refund 38,829.00

4,777.46  $940.48 - Refund 4,777.46

$2,332,901.62 $257,775.46 $2,589,470.16

 $2,590,677.08 $2,590,677.08
 

-$5,114.85 Refund    
-$0.03 Over  

  $1.70 Shortage

$0.00

  $2,585,563.90 

   Submitted  by: ___________________________________________          Date: ___________________

  Approved  by: ___________________________________________          Date: ___________________

Page 44 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.F 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 45 of 184



Page 46 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.G 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   December 7th, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Authorization to Collect 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Authorization to Collect – January renewals 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 47 of 184



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CAMDEN

TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County January Ren. Due 02/15/16 (NEW
SYSTEM)

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax receipts
herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set
forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon personal property of the
respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this order shall be a full and sufficient
authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell personal property of such
taxpayers for and on account thereof, in accordance with the law.

SOUTH MILLS COURTHOUSE SHILOH TOTAL

18,569.49 17,890.25 9,036.82 45,496.56

Witness my hand and official seal this day of

Chairman, Camden County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Camden County

This is to certify that I have received the tax receipts and duplicates for collection
in the amounts as listed herein.

Tax Administrator of Camden County

Page 48 of 184



            
      

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
          
 
 
 
Item Number:  5.H 

     

Meeting Date:   December 7, 2015 

Attachments:   SUP Findings of Facts with supporting documents 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Hearing – Special Use Permit 
Application (UDO 2015-10-08) for 
Outdoor Shooting Range for Law 
Enforcement 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
Sheriff Perry has applied for an Outdoor Shooting Range facility that will 
allow his personnel and possible other law enforcement personnel to 
maintain their qualifications required by the state.   
 
Planning Board met on November 18, 2015 to consider Special Use Permit 
application and after discussion with staff, adjacent property owners and 
applicant, Planning Board recommended approval of the Special Use 
Permit application with the conditions as stated in Staffs Findings on a 6-0 
vote.      
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Set public hearing for January 4, 2016 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

S. Duckwall  ____ 

T. White        ____ 
C. Riggs       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

Page 49 of 184



STAFF REPORT 

uno 2015-10-08 

Special Use Permit 

Findings of Facts 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

File Reference: 

Project Name; 

PIN: 

Applicant: 

Address: 

Phone: 

Email: 

Agent for Applicant: 

Address: 
Phone: 

Email: 

UDO 2015-1 0-08 
Shooting Range -
Law Enforcement 
03-8964-00-39-4075 
Sheriff s Office 
Camden County 
P.O. Box 57 
Camden, NC 27921 
(252) 338-5046 

Current Owner of Record: Michael P. McLain 

Meeting Dates: 
Planning Board - 11/112015 

Board of Commissioners 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

Street Address: 480 Trotman Road 
Location Description: Shiloh Township 

Application Received: 1017/2015 
By: David Parks, Pennit Officer 

Application Fee paid: $400 Check # 

Completeness of Application: Application is 
generally complete 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 
A. Land UselDevelopment Application 
B. Site Plan! Aerial Photo/Deed 
C. Sheriff Perry's letter request 
D. Sheriffs office Policy #3.30 entitled 

Shooting Range F aci I ity 
E. Proposed Lease Agreement 
F. Letter from Twiford Law Finn - John 

Morrison 
G. Letter from Army Corps of Engineers 
H. Proposal from Albemarle Septic Service 

Page 50 of 184



Page 51 of 184



Page 52 of 184



Page 53 of 184



Page 54 of 184



Page 55 of 184



Page 56 of 184



Page 57 of 184



Page 58 of 184



Page 59 of 184



Page 60 of 184



Page 61 of 184



Page 62 of 184



Page 63 of 184



Page 64 of 184



Page 65 of 184



Page 66 of 184



Page 67 of 184



Page 68 of 184



Page 69 of 184



Page 70 of 184



Page 71 of 184



Page 72 of 184



Page 73 of 184



Page 74 of 184



Page 75 of 184



Page 76 of 184



Page 77 of 184



Page 78 of 184



Page 79 of 184



Page 80 of 184



Page 81 of 184



Page 82 of 184



Page 83 of 184



Page 84 of 184



Page 85 of 184



Page 86 of 184



Page 87 of 184



Page 88 of 184



Page 89 of 184



Page 90 of 184



Page 91 of 184



Page 92 of 184



Page 93 of 184



Page 94 of 184



Page 95 of 184



 

 

Camden County 

 South Camden Water & Sewer District  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number 4.A 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:   12/7/15 

Attachments:   2  

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Draft Minutes 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY:  

 

October 5th, 2015 Draft Minutes 

November 2nd, 2015 Draft minutes 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL. 
 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 96 of 184



 

 

Camden County 

 South Camden Water & Sewer District  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number 4.B 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:   12/7/15 

Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 

Submitted By: David Credle, Public Works 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Monthly Work Order Report 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: Monthly work order report for the month of November. 

Ten work orders have been reviewed for accuracy and correct 

documentation.  
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL. 
 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 97 of 184



South Camden Water & Sewer Board 

Monthly Work Order Statistics Report 

Period:  Nov 2015 

 

 Submitted Work 
Orders 

Completed Work 
Orders 

Percentage 
Completed 

Status of 
Uncompleted Work 

Orders 

Water 
Collection/Distribution 

80 80 100% 0 

Sewer 11 11 100% 0 

Locates: 

 Water Line: 49 

 Sewer Line: 9 

         Water & Sewer, same ticket: 3 

Public Works Director Notes/Comments: 

(Outstanding maintenance issues, staffing issues, etc.) 

Page 98 of 184



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   8.A-F 

 

 

 INFORMATION 

 

Meeting Date:   December 7
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   6 

Submitted By: Various Department Heads 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   INFORMATION 
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

A. North Carolina’s October Employment Figures Released  

B. TDA Audit 

C. NC Department of Commerce   

D. Register of Deeds - Monthly Report 

E. Library - Monthly Report 

F. EMS Reports  

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 99 of 184



 
For Immediate Release:  November 20, 2015 

For More Information, Contact:  Kim Genardo/919.733.3438 
 

North Carolina’s October Employment Figures Released 
 
RALEIGH — The state’s seasonally adjusted October unemployment rate was 5.7 percent, decreasing 
0.1 of a percentage point from September’s revised rate.  The national rate declined 0.1 of a percentage 
point to 5.0 percent. 
 
North Carolina’s October 2015 unemployment rate was unchanged from a year ago.  The number of 
people employed increased 10,871 over the month to 4,488,328 and increased 124,146 over the year. 
The number of people unemployed decreased 2,042 over the month to 273,645, and increased 11,591 
over the year.   
 
Seasonally adjusted Total Nonfarm industry employment, as gathered through the monthly 
establishment survey, decreased 3,100 to 4,265,500 in October. The major industry with the largest 
over-the-month increase was Government at 6,400, followed by Construction, 2,200; Other Services, 
800; Professional & Business Services, 800; Trade, Transportation & Utilities, 200; and Mining & 
Logging, 100. Major industries experiencing decreases were Leisure & Hospitality Services, 7,200; 
Education & Health Services, 4,100; Financial Activities, 1,700; Manufacturing, 500; and Information, 
100. 

Seasonally Adjusted Unemployment Rates since October 2014 

  
Oct 
2014 

Nov 
2014 

Dec 
2014 

Jan 
2015 

Feb 
2015

Mar 
2015

Apr 
2015

May 
2015

Jun 
2015

Jul 
2015 

Aug 
2015 

Sep 
2015

Oct 
2015

N.C.  5.7  5.5  5.4  5.3  5.3 5.4 5.5 5.7 5.8 5.9  5.9  5.8 5.7

U.S.  5.7  5.8  5.6  5.7  5.5 5.5 5.4 5.5 5.3 5.3  5.1  5.1 5.0

Please note: 2014 numbers have been annually revised  
 
Since October 2014, Total Nonfarm jobs gained 91,000 with the Total Private sector growing by 
88,900 and Government increasing by 2,100.  The largest over-the-year increase among major 
industries was Professional & Business Services at 21,000, followed by Education & Health Services, 
12,900; Construction, 10,600; Trade, Transportation & Utilities, 10,200; Financial Activities, 9,800; 
Manufacturing, 8,800;   Leisure & Hospitality Services, 8,500; Other Services, 5,300; Government, 
2,100; and Information, 1,900.   The only major industry experiencing a decrease over the year was 
Mining & Logging, 100. 
 
The next unemployment update is scheduled for Monday, December 7, 2015 when the county 
unemployment rates for October 2015 will be released. 
 
 

 

This information may be accessed on the Commerce website at http://www.nccommerce.com/lead 

Page 100 of 184



 October 2015 September 2015 October 2014
Numeric
Change

Percent
Change

Numeric
Change

Percent
Change

(Local Area Unemployment Statistics)

Smoothed Seasonally Adjusted

 Labor Force 4,761,973 4,753,144 4,626,236 8,829 0.2 135,737 2.9

 Employed 4,488,328 4,477,457 4,364,182 10,871 0.2 124,146 2.8

 Unemployed 273,645 275,687 262,054 -2,042 -0.7 11,591 4.4

 Unemployment Rate 5.7 5.8 5.7 -0.1 xxx 0.0 xxx

Not Seasonally Adjusted

 Labor Force 4,787,360 4,755,526 4,672,756 31,834 0.7 114,604 2.5

 Employed 4,523,005 4,499,424 4,418,541 23,581 0.5 104,464 2.4

 Unemployed 264,355 256,102 254,215 8,253 3.2 10,140 4.0

 Unemployment Rate 5.5 5.4 5.4 0.1 xxx 0.1 xxx

(Current Population Survey)

Seasonally Adjusted

 Labor Force 157,028,000 156,715,000 156,243,000 313,000 0.2 xxx xxx

 Employed 149,120,000 148,800,000 147,260,000 320,000 0.2 xxx xxx

 Unemployed 7,908,000 7,915,000 8,983,000 -7,000 -0.1 xxx xxx

 Unemployment Rate 5.0 5.1 5.7 -0.1 xxx xxx xxx

Not Seasonally Adjusted

 Labor Force 157,313,000 156,607,000 156,616,000 706,000 0.5 xxx xxx

 Employed 149,716,000 148,980,000 147,936,000 736,000 0.5 xxx xxx

 Unemployed 7,597,000 7,628,000 8,680,000 -31,000 -0.4 xxx xxx

 Unemployment Rate 4.8 4.9 5.5 -0.1 xxx xxx xxx

*Effective January 2015, updated US population estimates are used in the national labor force estimates,
 The annual population adjustments affect the comparability of national labor force estimates over time.

2015 estimates for the current month are preliminary.  Estimates for the previous month have undergone monthly revision.
2014 estimates have undergone annual revision.

United States

Month Ago Year Ago

North Carolina

North Carolina data is embargoed until 10:00 A.M. Friday, November 20, 2015

Page 101 of 184



 October 2015 September 2015 October 2014
Numeric
Change

Percent
Change

Numeric
Change

Percent
Change

(Current Employment Statistics)

Seasonally Adjusted

Total Nonfarm 4,265,500 4,268,600 4,174,500 -3,100 -0.1 91,000 2.2

Total Private 3,548,400 3,557,900 3,459,500 -9,500 -0.3 88,900 2.6

Mining & Logging 5,500 5,400 5,600 100 1.9 -100 -1.8

Construction 192,000 189,800 181,400 2,200 1.2 10,600 5.8

Manufacturing 462,600 463,100 453,800 -500 -0.1 8,800 1.9

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 795,400 795,200 785,200 200 <0.1 10,200 1.3

Information 74,800 74,900 72,900 -100 -0.1 1,900 2.6

Financial Activities 221,400 223,100 211,600 -1,700 -0.8 9,800 4.6

Professional & Business Services 600,000 599,200 579,000 800 0.1 21,000 3.6

Education & Health Services 584,100 588,200 571,200 -4,100 -0.7 12,900 2.3

Leisure & Hospitality Services 455,400 462,600 446,900 -7,200 -1.6 8,500 1.9

Other Services 157,200 156,400 151,900 800 0.5 5,300 3.5

Government 717,100 710,700 715,000 6,400 0.9 2,100 0.3

(Current Employment Statistics)

Not Seasonally Adjusted

Total Nonfarm 4,303,500 4,278,100 4,211,900 25,400 0.6 91,600 2.2

Total Private 3,570,300 3,564,100 3,481,000 6,200 0.2 89,300 2.6

Mining & Logging 5,500 5,500 5,600 0 0.0 -100 -1.8

Construction 194,900 193,000 184,300 1,900 1.0 10,600 5.8

Manufacturing 464,100 464,600 455,100 -500 -0.1 9,000 2.0

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 793,500 790,000 783,400 3,500 0.4 10,100 1.3

Information 75,100 74,800 73,200 300 0.4 1,900 2.6

Financial Activities 221,700 223,700 212,000 -2,000 -0.9 9,700 4.6

Professional & Business Services 606,900 602,100 586,000 4,800 0.8 20,900 3.6

Education & Health Services 591,800 586,300 578,400 5,500 0.9 13,400 2.3

Leisure & Hospitality Services 459,500 468,300 451,100 -8,800 -1.9 8,400 1.9

Other Services 157,300 155,800 151,900 1,500 1.0 5,400 3.6

Government 733,200 714,000 730,900 19,200 2.7 2,300 0.3

Mfg. Production Workers (PW) Not Seasonally Adjusted
Mfg. PW Average Hourly Earnings $17.09 $17.04 $16.65

Mfg. PW Hours Worked 42.4 41.8 43.3

All 2015 Labor Force and CES data for the current month are preliminary.
All 2014 Labor Force and CES estimates have been benchmarked.
Estimates may not add to totals due to rounding.

North Carolina

North Carolina

Month Ago Year Ago

North Carolina data is embargoed until 10:00 A.M., Friday, November 20, 2015

Page 102 of 184



Technical Notes 
 
This release presents labor force and unemployment estimates from the Local Area Unemployment 
Statistics (LAUS) program. Also presented are nonfarm payroll employment estimates the Current 
Employment Statistics (CES) program. The LAUS and CES programs are both federal-state 
cooperative endeavors. 
 
Labor force and unemployment--from the LAUS program 
 

Definitions. The labor force and unemployment estimates are based on the same concepts and 
definitions as those used for the official national estimates obtained from the Current Population 
Survey (CPS), a sample survey of households that is conducted for the Bureau of Labor Statistics 
(BLS) by the U.S. Census Bureau. The LAUS program measures employment and unemployment on 
a place-of-residence basis. The universe for each is the civilian noninstitutional population 16 years 
of age and over. Employed persons are those who did any work at all for pay or profit in 
the reference week (the week including the 12th of the month) or worked 15 hours or more without 
pay in a family business or farm, plus those not working who had a job from which they were 
temporarily absent, whether or not paid, for such reasons as bad weather, labor-management dispute, 
illness, or vacation. Unemployed persons are those who were not employed during the reference 
week (based on the definition above), had actively looked for a job sometime in the 4-week period 
ending with the reference week, and were currently available for work; persons on lay-off expecting 
recall need not be looking for work to be counted as unemployed. The labor force is the sum of 
employed and unemployed persons. The unemployment rate is the number of unemployed as a 
percent of the labor force. 
 

Method of estimation. Statewide estimates are produced using an estimation algorithm 
administered by the BLS. This method, which underwent substantial enhancement at the beginning 
of 2005, utilizes data from several sources, including the CPS, the CES, and state unemployment 
insurance (UI) programs. Each month, census division estimates are controlled to national totals, and 
state estimates are then controlled to their respective division totals. Substate estimates are controlled 
to their respective state totals. For more information about LAUS estimation procedures, see the BLS 
website at www.bls.gov/lau/laumthd.htm 
 

Revisions. Labor force and unemployment data for the previous month reflect adjustments 
made in each subsequent month, while data for prior years reflect adjustments made at the end of 
each year. The monthly revisions incorporate updated model inputs, while the annually revised 
estimates reflect updated population data from the U.S. Census Bureau, any revisions in the other 
data sources, and model reestimation. In most years, historical data for the most recent five years 
(both seasonally adjusted and not seasonally adjusted) are revised near the beginning of each 
calendar year, prior to the release of January estimates. 
 

Seasonal adjustment. The LAUS program introduced smoothed seasonally adjusted 
(SSA) estimates in January 2010. These are seasonally-adjusted data that have incorporated a long-
run trend smoothing procedure, resulting in estimates that are less volatile than those previously 
produced. The estimates are smoothed using a filtering procedure, based on moving averages, to 
remove the irregular fluctuations from the seasonally-adjusted series, leaving the trend. The same 
process is used on both historical and current year estimates. For more information about the 
smoothing technique, see the BLS website at www.bls.gov/lau/lassaqa.htm. 
 

Page 103 of 184



Area definitions. The substate area data published in this release reflect the standards and 
definitions established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget on February 28, 2013. A 
detailed list of the geographic definitions is available online at www.bls.gov/lau/lausmsa.htm. 
 
Employment--from the CES program 
 

Definitions. Employment data refer to persons on establishment payrolls who receive pay for 
any part of the pay period that includes the 12th of the month. Persons are counted at their place of 
work rather than at their place of residence; those appearing on more than one payroll are counted on 
each payroll. Industries are classified on the basis of their principal activity in accordance with the 
2012 version of the North American Industry Classification System. 
 

Method of estimation. CES State and Area employment data are produced using several 
estimation procedures. Where possible these data are produced using a "weighted link relative" 
estimation technique in which a ratio of current-month weighted employment to that of the previous-
month weighted employment is computed from a sample of establishments reporting for both 
months. The estimates of employment for the current month are then obtained by multiplying these 
ratios by the previous month’s employment estimates. The weighted link relative technique is 
utilized for data series where the sample size meets certain statistical criteria. 
 
For some employment series, relatively small sample sizes limit the reliability of the weighted link-
relative estimates.  In these cases, BLS uses the CES small domain model (SDM) to generate 
employment estimates. The SDM combines the direct sample estimates (described above) and 
forecasts of historical (benchmarked) data to decrease the volatility of the estimates. For more 
detailed information about the CES small domain model, refer to the BLS Handbook of Methods. 
 

Annual revisions. Employment estimates are adjusted annually to a complete count of jobs, 
called benchmarks, derived principally from tax reports that are submitted by employers who are 
covered under state unemployment insurance (UI) laws. The benchmark information is used to adjust 
the monthly estimates between the new benchmark and the preceding one and also to establish the 
level of employment for the new benchmark month. Thus, the benchmarking process establishes the 
level of employment, and the sample is used to measure the month-to-month changes in the level for 
the subsequent months. 
 

Seasonal adjustment. Payroll employment data are seasonally adjusted at the statewide 
supersector level. In some states, the seasonally adjusted payroll employment total is computed by 
aggregating the independently adjusted supersector series. In other states, the seasonally adjusted 
payroll employment total is independently adjusted. Revisions of historical data for the most recent 5 
years are made once a year, coincident with annual benchmark adjustments. 
 
Reliability of the estimates 
 
The estimates presented in this release are based on sample surveys, administrative data, and 
modeling and, thus, are subject to sampling and other types of errors. Sampling error is a measure of 
sampling variability--that is, variation that occurs by chance because a sample rather than the entire 
population is surveyed. Survey data also are subject to nonsampling errors, such as those which can 
be introduced into the data collection and processing operations. Estimates not directly derived from 
sample surveys are subject to additional errors resulting from the specific estimation processes used.  

Page 104 of 184



Model-based error measures for seasonally adjusted and not seasonally adjusted data and for over-
the-month and over-the-year changes to LAUS estimates are available online at 
www.bls.gov/lau/lastderr.htm.  Measures of sampling error for state CES data at the total nonfarm 
and supersector levels are available online at www.bls.gov/sae/790stderr.htm.  
 
 
Release Dates 
 
The next unemployment update is scheduled for Monday, December 7, 2015 when the county 
unemployment rates for October 2015 will be released. 
 
The complete 2015 data release schedule can be accessed at: 
 
http://www.nccommerce.com/Portals/47/Documents/2015_NC_Release_Dates.pdf 
 
 

Page 105 of 184



 Labor Market Conditions
North Carolina October

2 0 1 5

L a b o r  &  E c o n o m i c  A n a l y s i s  |  N o r t h  C a r o l i n a  D e p a r t m e n t  o f  C o m m e r c e  |  1  o f  2

The North Carolina smoothed seasonally adjusted 
unemployment rate was 5.7 percent in October, decreasing 0.1 
of percentage point from the previous month, and remaining 
unchanged from October 2014. Over the month, the number 
of persons unemployed fell by 2,042 (0.7%). The civilian labor 
force increased by 8,829 (0.2%) to 4,761,973.

Nationally, October’s unemployment rate was 5.0 percent. 
The number of persons unemployed was 7,908,000, while the 
civilian labor force was 157,028,000.

Seasonally adjusted Total Nonfarm industry employment 
(4,265,500) decreased 3,100 (0.1%) since September 2015, 
and increased 91,000 (2.2%) since October 2014.1 Private 
sector employment declined over the month by 9,500 (0.3%), 
while growing 88,900 (2.6%) over the year.

Of the major industries for which payroll data are seasonally 
adjusted, Government had the largest over-the-month gain in 
jobs (6,400; 0.9%), followed by Construction (2,200; 1.2%), 
Other Services (800; 0.5%), Professional & Business Services 
(800; 0.1%), Trade, Transportation & Utilities (200; <0.1%), and 
Mining & Logging (100; 1.9%). Leisure & Hospitality Services 
(7,200; 1.6%) reported the largest over-the-month decrease, 
followed by Education & Health Services (4,100; 0.7%), 
Financial Activities (1,700; 0.8%), Manufacturing (500; 0.1%), 
and Information (100; 0.1%). 

Since October 2014, Professional & Business Services 
added the largest number of jobs (21,000; 3.6%), followed 
by Education & Health Services (12,900; 2.3%), Construction 
(10,600; 5.8%), Trade, Transportation & Utilities (10,200; 
1.3%), Financial Activities (9,800; 4.6%), Manufacturing 
(8,800; 1.9%), Leisure & Hospitality Services (8,500; 1.9%),    
Other Services (5,300; 3.5%), Government (2,100; 0.3%) and 
Information (1,900; 2.6%). Mining & Loggin reported the only 
over-the-year loss of 100 (1.8%).

1It is important to note that industry employment estimates are subject to large 
seasonal patterns. Seasonal adjustment factors are applied to the data. However, these 
factors may not be fully capturing the seasonal trend. Therefore, when interpreting the 
changes in industry employment, it is advisable to focus on over-the-year changes in both 
the seasonally adjusted and not seasonally adjusted series.

Changes in Employment by NAICS Industries
October 2014 Compared to October 2015
(Seasonally Adjusted)

United States/North Carolina Unemployment Rates
October 2014–October 2015
(Smoothed Seasonally Adjusted**)

North Carolina Total Nonfarm Employment
October 2014–October 2015
(Seasonally Adjusted)

5.7 5.8 5.6 5.7 5.5 5.5 5.4 5.5 5.3 5.3 5.1 5.1 5.0

5.7 5.5 5.4 5.3 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.7 5.8 5.9 5.9 5.8 5.7

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

Oct.
2014

Nov.
2014

Dec.
2014

Jan.
2015

Feb.
2015

March
2015

April
2015

May
2015

June
2015

July
2015

Aug.
2015

Sept.
2015

Oct.
2015

Pe
rc

en
t

United States North Carolina

4,000

4,050

4,100

4,150

4,200

4,250

4,300

Oct.
2014

Nov.
2014

Dec.
2014

Jan.
2015

Feb.
2015

March
2015

April
2015

May
2015

June
2015

July
2015

Aug.
2015

Sept.
2015

Oct.
2015

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

+10.6

+8.8

+10.2

+1.9

+9.8

+21.0 +12.9

+8.5

+5.3

+2.1

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Construction Manufacturing Trade,
Transportation

& Utilities

Information Financial
Activities

 Professional
& Business

Services

Education &
Health

Services

Leisure &
Hospitality

Services

Other Services Government

In
 Th

ou
sa

nd
s

October 2014 October 2015

* N . C .  c u r r e n t  m o n t h  d a t a  a r e  p r e l i m i n a r y ,  w h i l e  a l l  o t h e r  2 0 1 5  d a t a  a r e  r e v i s e d ,  a n d  2 0 1 4  d a t a  h a v e  u n d e r g o n e  a n n u a l  r e v i s i o n .  U . S .  d a t a  h a v e  u n d e r g o n e  a n n u a l  r e v i s i o n .

* * U S  d a t a  a r e  n o t  s m o o t h e d .

Page 106 of 184



L a b o r  &  E c o n o m i c  A n a l y s i s  |  N o r t h  C a r o l i n a  D e p a r t m e n t  o f  C o m m e r c e  |  2  o f  2

North Carolina Labor Market Conditions
The October 2015 not seasonally adjusted Total Nonfarm 
employment level of 4,303,500 was 25,400 (0.6%) more than 
the September 2015 revised employment level of 4,278,100. 
Among the major industries in North Carolina, Government had 
the largest over-the-month increase in employment at 19,200 
(2.7%), followed by Education & Health Services (5,500; 
0.9%), Professional & Business Services (4,800; 0.8%), 
Trade, Transportation & Utilities (3,500; 0.4%), Construction 
(1,900; 1.0%), Other Services (1,500; 1.0%), and Information 
(300; 0.4%). Leisure & Hospitality Services (8,800; 1.9%) had 
the largest over-the-month decrease, followed by Financial 
Activities (2,000; 0.9%), and Manufacturing (500; 0.1%). 
Mining & Logging remained unchanged.

Over the year, the Service Providing sector (all industries 
except Mining & Logging, Construction, and Manufacturing) 
showed an increase of 72,100 (2.0%) jobs. Professional & 
Business Services experienced the largest employment 
increase at 20,900 (3.6%), followed by Education & Health 
Services (13,400; 2.3%), Trade, Transportation & Utilities 
(10,100; 1.3%), Financial Activities (9,700; 4.6%), Leisure & 
Hospitality Services (8,400; 1.9%), Other Services (5,400; 
3.6%), Government (2,300; 0.3%) and Information (1,900; 
2.6%).

The Goods Producing sector grew by 19,500 (3.0%) jobs over 
the year. Construction had the largest employment increase 
with 10,600 (5.8%), followed by Manufacturing (9,000; 2.0%). 
Mining & Logging reported a decrease of 100 (1.8%).

Food had the largest manufacturing employment with 51,900 in 
October 2015. Fabricated Metal Product, Furniture & Related 
Product, and Plastics & Rubber Products tied for the largest 
net over-the-year increase at 2,400. Other manufacturing 
industries with gains were: Wood Product, 1,000; Machinery, 
900; Transportation Equipment, 800; Beverage & Tobacco 
Product, 300; and Chemical, 200.

Average Weekly Hours for manufacturing production workers in 
October increased 36 minutes from September’s revised rate 
of 41.8. Average Hourly Earnings grew by $0.05 to $17.09, as 
Average Weekly Earnings rose $12.35 to $724.62. 

Regular Initial Claims for Unemployment Insurance (UI) totaled 
16,720 in October, increasing 786 from September. Less than 1 
percent of Initial Claims for October 2015 were “attached” to a 
payroll, meaning that employees expect to be recalled to their 
jobs.  

A total of $17,467,203 in regular UI benefits was paid in 
October to 22,545 claimants statewide — a decrease of 1,408 
claimants since September 2015.

For the 12-month period ending October 2015, $291,994,016 
was paid under the Regular UI Program. The UI Trust Fund 
balance at the end of October was $785,427,774. The State 
Reserve Fund balance was $225,576,162.

2.4 2.4 2.4

1.0 0.9 0.8

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

Fabricated
Metal Product

  Furniture &
Related
Product

Plastics &
Rubber

Wood
Product

Machinery Transportation
Equipment

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

13.9

9.3 8.8

6.8
5.4 5.2

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

Admin &
Waste Mgmt.

Health Care &
Social

Assistance

Accom. &
Food Services

Finance &
Insurance

Retail Trade Professional,
Scientific &

Tech.

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

$1,560,979,472

$291,994,016

$8,199,954
$0

$500,000,000

$1,000,000,000

$1,500,000,000

$2,000,000,000

UI Taxes Collected UI Benefits Paid Interest Received

Selected Manufacturing Industries With Job Gains
October 2014–October 2015
(Not Seasonally Adjusted)

Selected Service Industries With Job Gains
October 2014–October 2015
(Not Seasonally Adjusted)

UI Taxes Collected and NC Regular UI Benefits Paid
October 2014–October 2015

Page 107 of 184



NC TODAY
November 2015

This will  be the last edition of the 
NC Today in its current format. Be on 
the lookout for a more streamlined 
version in  the near  future.  I f  you  
h ave  a ny  q u e s t i o n s  o r  c o n c e r n s ,  
p l e a s e  c a l l  u s  a t  ( 9 1 9 )  7 0 7 - 1 5 0 0  
o r  l e a d @ n c c o m m e r c e . c o m .

Page 108 of 184



Employment at a Glance 

Civilian Labor Force

• North Carolina’s October 2015 smoothed seasonally adjusted unemployment rate, at 5.7 percent, decreased 
0.1 of a percentage point from September 2014. The rate was 5.7 percent in October 2014.

• At 5.7 percent, North Carolina’s October unemployment rate is 0.7 of a percentage point higher than the U.S. 5.0 
percent rate. 

• Over the month, the number of people unemployed fell 0.7 of a percentage point to 273,645.

• During October, North Carolina’s smoothed seasonally adjusted labor force participation rate grew 0.1 of a 
percentage point to 61.0 percent, and the U.S. rate remained unchanged at 62.4 percent.

Nonfarm Employment 

• Seasonally adjusted Total Nonfarm employment for October 2015 declined by 3,100 jobs over the month, 
and increased 91,000 over the year to 4,265,500.

• Over the month, six sectors experienced seasonally adjusted job growth: Government, 6,400; Construction, 
2,200; Other Services, 800; Professional & Business Services, 800; Trade, Transportation & Utilities, 200; and 
Mining & Logging, 100. Losses were reported by Leisure & Hospitality Services, 7,200; Education & Health 
Services, 4,100; Financial Activities, 1,700; Manufacturing, 500; and Information, 100. 

• The major sectors to report over-the-year seasonally adjusted job increases were: Professional & Business 
Services, 21,000; Education & Health Services, 12,900; Construction, 10,600; Trade, Transportation & 
Utilities, 10,200; Financial Activities, 9,800; Manufacturing, 8,800; Leisure & Hospitality Services, 8,500; 
Other Services, 5,300; Government, 2,100; and Information, 1,900. Mining & Logging reported the only 
over-the-year decrease of 100.

• Not seasonally adjusted, the following major sectors reported over-the-year job growth: Professional & Business 
Services, 20,900; Education & Health Services, 13,400; Construction, 10,600; Trade, Transportation & 
Utilities, 10,100; Financial Activities, 9,700; Manufacturing, 9,000; Leisure & Hospitality Services, 8,400;  
Other Services, 5,400; Government, 2,300; and Information, 1,900. Mining & Logging reported the only over-
the-year decrease of 100.

• The following sectors in Manufacturing showed not seasonally adjusted over-the-year job increases: Fabricated 
Metal Product, 2,400; Furniture & Related Product, 2,400; Plastics & Rubber Products, 2,400; Wood Product, 
1,000; Machinery, 900; Transportation Equipment, 800; Beverage & Tobacco Product, 300; and Chemical, 
200. Losses were reported in the remaining sectors: Food, 1,200; Apparel, 500; Computer & Electronic Product, 
500; Electrical Equipment, Appliance & Component, 500; Textile Mills, 300; and  Textile Product Mills, 300. 
Printing & Related Support Activities reported no change. 

• Food remains North Carolina’s leading sector in manufacturing employment at 51,900; Chemical follows with 
42,900.

Other Information

• Preliminary Average Hourly Earnings in North Carolina for manufacturing production workers increased 5 cent 
to $17.09 in October; Average Weekly Hours grew by 36 minutes to 42.4 from 41.8. Average Weekly Earnings 
rose $12.35 to $724.62. 

• North Carolina paid $18.0 million in Unemployment Insurance benefits (all programs) to claimants in October. 
These payments include state and federally funded benefits.

• The number of Initial Claims filed in North Carolina for Unemployment Insurance benefits increased in 
October to 16,720. Approximately $17.5 million was paid in regular UI benefits to 22,545 unemployed 
persons across the state. The average weekly benefit amount was $243.17  (maximum weekly benefit is $350). 

November 2015 NC Today      i   

Page 109 of 184



Table of Contents

United States/North Carolina Labor Force Data, October 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

United States/North Carolina Unemployment Rates, October 2013–October 2015  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

United States Labor Force, October 2014–October 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

North Carolina Labor Force, October 2014–October 2015. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Unemployment Rates by State, September 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

North Carolina Unemployment Rates by County, September 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
              

North Carolina Total Nonfarm Employment, June 2009–October 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

North Carolina Industry Employment, October 2015 (Seasonally Adjusted). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

North Carolina Industry Employment Net Change, October 2014–October 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

North Carolina Goods Producing, January 2000–October 2015  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

North Carolina Service Providing, January 2000–October 2015  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

North Carolina Industry Supersector Employment, October 2015 (Not Seasonally Adjusted )  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

North Carolina MSA Total Nonfarm Employment, October 2015 (Not Seasonally Adjusted ) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .10

Employment Change in North Carolina Manufacturing Industries Comparison of October 2005, 2010 & 2015 . . . . . . . .11
            

Hours and Earnings, October 2014–October 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .12

North Carolina Regular UI Initial Claims Activity, October 2013–October 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .13

North Carolina New Claims Activity, October 2013–October 2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .13

North Carolina MSA Regular UI Initial Claims Activity, October 2015. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .14

Glossary of Terms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .15

     ii   November 2015 NC Today

Page 110 of 184



Source: N.C. data: LAUS, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce; U.S. data: Current Population Survey, BLS
P Preliminary; R Revised; AR Annual Revision Note: May not sum due to rounding. More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx
*Effective January 2015, updated U.S. population estimates are used in the national labor force estimates. The annual population adjustments affect the comparability of 
national labor estimates over time.

United States/North Carolina Labor Force Data
October 2015

(Civilian Labor Force Estimates)

Month Ago Year Ago

OctoberP

2015
SeptemberR

2015
OctoberAR

2014
Numeric
Change

Percent 
Change

Numeric
Change

Percent 
Change

North Carolina

Smoothed
Seasonally Adjusted

Labor Force 4,761,973 4,753,144 4,626,236 8,829 0.2 135,737 2.9

Employed 4,488,328 4,477,457 4,364,182 10,871 0.2 124,146 2.8

Unemployed 273,645 275,687 262,054 -2,042 -0.7 11,591 4.4

Unemployment Rate 5.7 5.8 5.7 -0.1 xxx 0.0 xxx

Not Seasonally Adjusted

Labor Force 4,787,360 4,755,526 4,672,756 31,834 0.7 114,604 2.5

Employed 4,523,005 4,499,424 4,418,541 23,581 0.5 104,464 2.4

Unemployed 264,355 256,102 254,215 8,253 3.2 10,140 4.0

Unemployment Rate 5.5 5.4 5.4 0.1 xxx 0.1 xxx

(Civilian Labor Force Estimates)

Month Ago Year Ago

October    
2015

September
2015

October 
2014

Numeric 
Change

Percent 
Change

Numeric 
Change

Percent 
Change

United States*

Seasonally Adjusted

Labor Force 157,028,000 156,715,000 156,243,000 313,000 0.2 xxx xxx

Employed 149,120,000 148,800,000 147,260,000 320,000 0.2 xxx xxx

Unemployed 7,908,000 7,915,000 8,983,000 -7,000 -0.1 xxx xxx

Unemployment Rate 5.0 5.1 5.7 -0.1 xxx xxx xxx

Not Seasonally Adjusted

Labor Force 157,313,000 156,607,000 156,616,000 706,000 0.5 xxx xxx

Employed 149,716,000 148,980,000 147,936,000 736,000 0.5 xxx xxx

Unemployed 7,597,000 7,628,000 8,680,000 -31,000 -0.4 xxx xxx

Unemployment Rate 4.8 4.9 5.5 -0.1 xxx xxx xxx

November 2015 NC Today     1   

Page 111 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx


The smoothed seasonally adjusted North Carolina civilian labor force increased 8,829 (0.2%) to 4,761,973 from 
September 2015 to October 2015. The number of persons employed increased 10,871 (0.2%) to 4,488,328, while 
the number of persons unemployed decreased 2,042 (0.7%) to 273,645. The unemployment rate decreased 0.1 of a 
percentage point to 5.7%. The labor force participation rate increased 0.1 of a percentage point to 61.0%.

Over the year, North Carolina’s smoothed seasonally adjusted labor force increased 135,737 (2.9%), while the number 
of persons employed increased 124,146 (2.8%). The number of persons unemployed increased 11,591 (4.4%). The 
unemployment rate remained unchanged over the year.

The United States’ seasonally adjusted civilian labor force increased 0.2 percent over the month to 157,028,000. The 
number of persons employed increased 0.2 percent to 149,120,000, while those unemployed decreased 0.1 percent 
to 7,908,000. The nation’s unemployment rate declined 0.1 of a percentage point to 5.0 percent. The labor force 
participation rate remained unchanged at 62.4 percent. 

United States/North Carolina Unemployment Rates                              
October 2013–October 2015

(Smoothed Seasonally Adjusted)

Source: N.C. data: LAUS, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce, U.S. data: Current Population Survey, BLS
Note: N.C. October 2015 data are preliminary, other 2015 data are revised, while all other years’ data reflect annual revision and new seasonal adjustments.
More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx

Source: N.C. data: LAUS, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce, U.S. data: Current Population Survey, BLS 
Note: N.C. October 2015 data are preliminary, other 2015 data are revised, while all other years’ data reflect annual revision and new seasonal adjustments.
More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx 

North Carolina Labor Force                              
October 2014–October 2015

(Smoothed Seasonally Adjusted)

United States Labor Force                             
October 2014–October 2015

(Seasonally Adjusted)

     2   November 2015 NC Today

4

5

6

7

8

9

O
ct

.

No
v.

De
c.

Ja
n.

 1
4

Fe
b.

M
ar

ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju
ly

Au
g.

Se
pt

.

O
ct

.

No
v.

De
c.

Ja
n.

 1
5

Fe
b.

M
ar

ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju
ly

Au
g.

Se
pt

.

O
ct

.

Pe
rc

en
t

NC US

155,000

155,500

156,000

156,500

157,000

157,500

158,000

O
ct

. 1
4

No
v.

 1
4

De
c. 

14

Ja
n.

 1
5

Fe
b.

 1
5

M
ar

ch
 1

5

Ap
ril

 1
5

M
ay

 1
5

Ju
ne

 1
5

Ju
ly

 1
5

Au
g.

 1
5

Se
pt

. 1
5

O
ct

. 1
5

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

US

4,600

4,625

4,650

4,675

4,700

4,725

4,750

4,775

4,800

O
ct

. 1
4

N
ov

. 1
4

D
ec

. 1
4

Ja
n.

 1
5

Fe
b.

 1
5

M
ar

ch
 1

5

Ap
ril

 1
5

M
ay

 1
5

Ju
ne

 1
5

Ju
ly

 1
5

Au
g.

 1
5

Se
pt

. 1
5

O
ct

. 1
5

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

NC

October 2013: 7.2

October 2013: 7.1

October 2015: 5.7

October 2015: 5.0

Page 112 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx
http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx


AK

HI

Prepared by Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce 11_15

MI

Note: States' September 2015 data are preliminary. U.S. rate is not smoothed.

NY

6.4

3.4

TX

CA

MT

AZ

ID

NV

NM

CO

IL

OR

UT

KS

WY

IANE

SD

MN

ND

FL

OK

WI

MO

AL

WA

GA

AR

LA

IN

PA

NC

MS

TN

VA

KY

OH

SC

ME

WV

VT

NH

NJ

MA

CT

MD

DE

RI

DC

4.2

4.1

5.9

6.86.3

6.7

4.0

6.2

4.0

3.6

3.8

4.4

4.2
3.5

2.9

5.3

4.4

2.8

5.2

5.8

3.6

5.4

6.1

5.2

4.3 5.1

5.2

6.0

5.8

5.3

5.7

6.0

4.5

5.0

5.0

5.7

4.4

5.4

4.9

5.2

5.6

4.6
3.4

3.7

5.1
7.3

4.5

4.3

6.7

Unemployment Rates by State
Smoothed Seasonally Adjusted

September 2015
U.S. Rate = 5.1%

2.8 - 4.0

4.1 - 5.0

5.1 - 5.5

5.6 - 6.5

6.6 - 7.5

North Dakota had the lowest jobless rate in September, 2.8 percent, followed by Nebraska, 2.9 percent. West Virginia 
had the highest rate, 7.3 percent. In total, 19 states had unemployment rates significantly lower than the U.S. figure of 
5.1 percent, 12 states and the District of Columbia had measurably higher rates, and 19 states had rates that were not 
appreciably different from that of the nation. 

In September, 11 states had statistically significant over-the-month unemployment rate declines, the largest of which 
occurred in Missouri, Rhode Island, and South Carolina (-0.3 of a percentage point each). The remaining 39 states and 
the District of Columbia had jobless rates that were not measurably different from those of a month earlier, though 
some had changes that were at least as large numerically as the significant changes.

Twenty-six states and the District of Columbia had statistically significant unemployment rate declines from 
September 2014, the largest of which occurred in Rhode Island (-1.8 percentage points) and Michigan (-1.7 percentage 
points). The only significant over-the-year rate increase was in West Virginia (+1.0 percentage point). The remaining 23 
states had rates that were not appreciably different from those of a year earlier.

Among North Carolina’s neighboring states, unemployment rates declined in South Carolina (0.3 of a percentage 
point) and Virginia (0.2 of a percentage point) and remained unchanged in Georgia and Tennessee.

More information can be found at: http://www.bls.gov/lau/

November 2015 NC Today      3   

Page 113 of 184

http://www.bls.gov/lau/


Hertford
6.7

Northampton
7.6Warren

8.1
Rockingham

6.2 Vance
8.2

Person
6.2 Pasquotank

6.9
Halifax

8.8 Perquimans
6.7

Chowan
7.3

Bertie
6.9

Nash
7.2

Mitchell
6.3

Edgecombe
9.3

Tyrrell
7.5Martin

7.5
Washington

8.1
Wilson

9.4

Swain
6.6 Beaufort

6.4 Hyde
6.4

Rutherford
7.3

Lee
6.9

Harnett
6.2

Graham
10.0

Lenoir
6.1

Cumberland
7.0Anson

6.4

Hoke
7.4

Richmond
7.6

Scotland
10.2

Robeson
8.1

Bladen
7.8

Columbus
7.2

Brunswick
6.6

Ashe
5.5

Alleghany
5.5 Currituck

5.0

Camden
5.5Surry

5.1

Gates
5.2Stokes

5.0
Granville

4.8

Caswell
5.9

Wilkes
5.4

Watauga
4.3

Avery
5.2

Yadkin
4.5

Dare
4.7

Forsyth
5.2 Franklin

5.4
Guilford

5.5 Alamance
4.9

Orange
4.2

Durham
4.8Caldwell

5.9Yancey
5.4Madison

5.0
Wake

4.5

Iredell
5.1

Davie
4.7

Alexander
4.8

Burke
5.5

Davidson
5.2McDowell

5.1
Randolph

5.2
Chatham

4.5Rowan
5.6

Buncombe
4.0Haywood

4.7

Catawba
5.3 Pitt

5.9Johnston
4.9 Greene

5.6
Cleveland

6.0

Wayne
5.8

Jackson
5.2

Lincoln
5.1

Henderson
4.4

Mecklenburg
5.1

Cabarrus
4.9 Moore

5.5Montgomery
5.3

Stanly
5.1

Transylvania
5.1

Polk
5.0

Gaston
5.5 Craven

5.9
Macon

5.3
Cherokee

6.0 Pamlico
6.0

Sampson
5.5

Clay
5.6

Jones
5.8

Carteret
5.3

Union
4.5 Duplin

5.5

Onslow
5.7

Pender
5.7

New
Hanover

5.1

North Carolina Unemployment Rates by County
September 2015

Note: September 2015 data are preliminary.
Prepared by Labor & Economic Analysis, North Carolina Department of Commerce 10_2015

North Carolina Rate 5.4%
Not Seasonally Adjusted

0 Counties Higher Than Previous Month

100 Counties Lower Than Previous Month

0 Counties Same as Previous Month

^^
=

September 2015
4.0 - 5.0

5.1 - 6.0

6.1 - 7.0

7.1 - 8.5

8.6 - 10.5

Between August 2015 and September 2015, not seasonally adjusted unemployment rates decreased in all 100 of 
North Carolina’s counties.  Scotland and Martin Counties saw the largest over-the-month decreases, each declining 
1.2 percentage points.  Two counties across the state had unemployment rates at 10.0 percent or above, 77 between 
5.0 percent and 10.0 percent, and 21 at 5.0 percent or below.  Forty-two counties were at or below the statewide not 
seasonally adjusted rate of 5.4 percent.  Scotland County had the highest unemployment rate at 10.2 percent while 
Buncombe County had the lowest at 4.0 percent.  

Over the year, not seasonally adjusted unemployment rates fell in 77 counties, increased in 14, and remained 
unchanged in nine.  Graham County experienced the largest over-the-year decrease, declining 3.6 percentage points.  
The September 2014 county rates ranged from 13.6 percent in Graham County to 4.2 percent in Buncombe and 
Orange Counties.

More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx 

     4   November 2015 NC Today

Page 114 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/LausSelection.aspx


The last recession began in December 2007 and ended June 2009. Based on this designation, the national recession 
officially lasted 18 months. 

While the recession officially began in December 2007, North Carolina’s seasonally adjusted Total Nonfarm 
employment peaked in February 2008 at 4,174,400. The state reached its lowest level of Total Nonfarm employment in 
February 2010 when employment reached 3,841,200. 

Between the peak in employment in February 2008 and the low of February 2010, North Carolina lost 333,200 jobs 
— a decrease of 8.0 percent. All major industrial sectors experienced job declines with the exception of Education 
& Health Services and Government, which experienced modest gains of 6,700 jobs and 4,200 jobs, respectively. The 
largest job losses were experienced in Manufacturing (98,600), Trade, Transportation & Utilities (73,800), Construction 
(72,000), and Professional & Business Services (36,500).

Based on October’s preliminary employment estimates, North Carolina’s economy has gained 424,300 jobs since the 
low in February 2010, and employment in the Private sector has risen by 424,500. The largest job growth has been 
in Professional & Business Services, which added 127,900 jobs, followed by Trade, Transportation & Utilities (86,100 
added), and Leisure & Hospitality Services (67,800 added). The largest job loss occurred in Government with 200 jobs 
lost. 

North Carolina
Total Nonfarm Employment

June 2009–October 2015
(Seasonally Adjusted)

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx
Note: October 2015 data are preliminary, other 2015 data are revised, while all other years’ data are benchmarked.  Recession represents the dates December 2007–June 2009.

November 2015 NC Today      5   

3,800

3,900

4,000

4,100

4,200

4,300
Ju

ly
 0

9

O
ct

. 0
9

Ja
n.

 1
0

Ap
ril

 1
0

Ju
ly

 1
0

O
ct

. 1
0

Ja
n.

 1
1

Ap
ril

 1
1

Ju
ly

 1
1

O
ct

. 1
1

Ja
n.

 1
2

Ap
ril

 1
2

Ju
ly

 1
2

O
ct

. 1
2

Ja
n.

 1
3

Ap
ril

 1
3

Ju
ly

 1
3

O
ct

. 1
3

Ja
n.

 1
4

Ap
ril

 1
4

Ju
ly

 1
4

O
ct

. 1
4

Ja
n.

 1
5

Ap
ril

 1
5

Ju
ly

 1
5

O
ct

. 1
5

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

June 2009: 3,896,700

February 2010: 3,841,200

End of Recession To
Current Month Difference:

 368,800

October 2015: 4,265,500

Page 115 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


North Carolina Industry Employment
October 2015

(Seasonally Adjusted, In Thousands)

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce.   
P Preliminary; R Revised; B Benchmarked; more information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx

Total Employment Net & Percent Change

NAICS Industry OctoberP

2015
SeptemberR

2015
OctoberB

2014
From September

2015
From October

2014

Net Percent Net Percent

Total Nonfarm 4,265.5 4,268.6 4,174.5 -3.1 -0.1% 91.0 2.2%

Total Private 3,548.4 3,557.9 3,459.5 -9.5 -0.3% 88.9 2.6%

Goods Producing 660.1 658.3 640.8 1.8 0.3% 19.3 3.0%

Service Providing 3,605.4 3,610.3 3,533.7 -4.9 -0.1% 71.7 2.0%

Private Service Providing 2,888.3 2,899.6 2,818.7 -11.3 -0.4% 69.6 2.5%

Mining & Logging 5.5 5.4 5.6 0.1 1.9% -0.1 -1.8%

Construction 192.0 189.8 181.4 2.2 1.2% 10.6 5.8%

Manufacturing 462.6 463.1 453.8 -0.5 -0.1% 8.8 1.9%

    Durable Goods    253.5 255.3 243.5 -1.8 -0.7% 10.0 4.1%

    Nondurable Goods 209.1 207.8 210.3 1.3 0.6% -1.2 -0.6%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 795.4 795.2 785.2 0.2 0.0% 10.2 1.3%

    Wholesale Trade  182.6 182.0 179.2 0.6 0.3% 3.4 1.9%

    Retail Trade     481.9 482.3 476.4 -0.4 -0.1% 5.5 1.2%

    Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 130.9 130.9 129.6 0.0 0.0% 1.3 1.0%

Information 74.8 74.9 72.9 -0.1 -0.1% 1.9 2.6%

Financial Activities 221.4 223.1 211.6 -1.7 -0.8% 9.8 4.6%

    Finance & Insurance 164.8 165.1 157.9 -0.3 -0.2% 6.9 4.4%

    Real Estate, Rental &  Leasing 56.6 58.0 53.7 -1.4 -2.4% 2.9 5.4%

Professional & Business Services 600.0 599.2 579.0 0.8 0.1% 21.0 3.6%

   Professional, Scientific & Technical Svcs 216.2 217.7 211.0 -1.5 -0.7% 5.2 2.5%

   Management of Companies & Enterprises 83.3 83.2 81.5 0.1 0.1% 1.8 2.2%

   Admin. & Support & Waste Mgmt. 300.5 298.3 286.5 2.2 0.7% 14.0 4.9%

Education & Health Services 584.1 588.2 571.2 -4.1 -0.7% 12.9 2.3%

   Educational Services 80.7 80.5 76.9 0.2 0.2% 3.8 4.9%

   Health Care & Social Assistance 503.4 507.7 494.3 -4.3 -0.8% 9.1 1.8%

Leisure & Hospitality Services 455.4 462.6 446.9 -7.2 -1.6% 8.5 1.9%

   Arts, Entertainment & Recreation 62.1 64.9 62.5 -2.8 -4.3% -0.4 -0.6%

   Accommodation & Food Services 393.3 397.7 384.4 -4.4 -1.1% 8.9 2.3%

Other Services 157.2 156.4 151.9 0.8 0.5% 5.3 3.5%

Government 717.1 710.7 715.0 6.4 0.9% 2.1 0.3%

   Federal 70.0 70.2 68.9 -0.2 -0.3% 1.1 1.6%

   State 204.6 205.0 204.6 -0.4 -0.2% 0.0 0.0%

   Local 442.5 435.5 441.5 7.0 1.6% 1.0 0.2%

     6   November 2015 NC Today

Page 116 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


In October 2015, North Carolina’s seasonally adjusted Total Nonfarm employment decreased by 3,100 jobs over the 
month, but gained 91,000 jobs over the year. The United States added 271,000 Total Nonfarm jobs over the month and 
2,814,000 over the year. 

North Carolina’s Private sector lost 9,500 jobs over the month, but gained 88,900 jobs over the year. The Service 
Providing industries, which include all industries except Mining & Logging, Construction, and Manufacturing, 
decreased by 4,900 jobs over the month, but gained 71,700 jobs over the year. The Goods Producing industries gained 
1,800 jobs over the month and gained 19,300 jobs over the year.

Seasonally Adjusted, six of the eleven major North Carolina industrial sectors experienced job gains over the month. 
Government had the largest net increase (6,400), followed by Construction (2,200); Other Services (800); Professional 
& Business Services (800); Trade, Transportation & Utilities (200) and Mining & Logging (100). Of the remaining five 
industrial sectors, Leisure & Hospitality had the largest net decrease (7,200), followed by Education & Health Services 
(4,100); Financial Activities (1,700), Manufacturing (500) and Information (100). 

It is important to note that industry employment estimates are subject to large seasonal patterns. Seasonal 
adjustment factors are applied to the data. However, these factors may not fully capture the seasonal trend. Therefore, 
when interpreting the changes in industry employment, it is advisable to focus on over-the-year changes in both the 
seasonally adjusted series and not seasonally adjusted series.

Ten of the eleven major industrial sectors experienced seasonally adjusted job growth over the year. Professional & 
Business Services increased by 21,000, due to gains in Admin & Support & Waste Management & Remediation Services 
(14,000), Professional, Scientific, & Technical Services (5,200) and Management of Companies & Enterprises (1,800). 
Education & Health Services increased 12,900 with gains in Health Care & Social Assistance (9,100) and in Educational 
Services (3,800). Construction gained 10,600 jobs. Trade, Transportation & Utilities increased 10,200 with gains in 
Retail Trade (5,500), Wholesale Trade (3,400) and Transportation & Utilities (1,300). Financial Activities grew by 9,800 
jobs with gains in Finance & Insurance (6,900) and Real Estate & Rental & Leasing (2,900). Manufacturing increased 
by 8,800 jobs with a gain in Durable Goods (10,000) and a loss in Nondurable Goods (1,200). Leisure & Hospitality 
gained 8,500 jobs due to an increase in Accommodation & Food Services (8,900) and a loss in Arts, Entertainment, & 
Recreation (400). Other Services gained 5,300 jobs. Government increased by 2,100 jobs over the year due to a gains in 
Federal Government (1,100) and Local Government (1,000) while State Government remained unchanged (204,600). 
Information gained 1,900 jobs. Mining & Logging lost 100 jobs. 

North Carolina Industry Employment Net Change
October 2014–October 2015

(Seasonally Adjusted)

November 2015 NC Today      7   

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx

-0.1

1.9

2.1

5.3

8.5

8.8

9.8

10.2

10.6

12.9

21.0

-5.0 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0

Mining & Logging

Information

Government

Other Services

Leisure & Hospitality Services

Manufacturing

Financial Activities

Trade, Transportation & Utilities

Construction

Education & Health Services

Professional & Business Services

Page 117 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


Since the beginning of the 2007 national recession (December 2007), North Carolina has lost 131,900 Goods 
Producing jobs, but has gained 18,500 Goods Producing jobs since the end of the recession in June 2009. 

Since the beginning of the 2007 national recession (December 2007), North Carolina’s Service Providing sector has 
gained 229,600 jobs and has gained 350,300 jobs since the end of the recession in June 2009. 

North Carolina Goods Producing
January 2000–October 2015

(Seasonally Adjusted)

Source: CES, North Carolina Department of Commerce, Labor & Economic Analysis Division
Note: October 2015 data are preliminary, while all other data are benchmarked. Recession periods documented in above graph represent the 
dates March 2001–November 2001, and December 2007–June 2009. More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx

North Carolina Service Providing
January 2000–October 2015

(Seasonally Adjusted)

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. 
Note: October 2015 data are preliminary, while all other data are benchmarked. Recession periods documented in above graph represent the 
dates March 2001–November 2001, and December 2007–June 2009. More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx

     8   November 2015 NC Today

500

575

650

725

800

875

950

1,025

1,100

Ja
n.

 0
0

Ja
n.

 0
1

Ja
n.

 0
2

Ja
n.

 0
3

Ja
n.

 0
4

Ja
n.

 0
5

Ja
n.

 0
6

Ja
n.

 0
7

Ja
n.

 0
8

Ja
n.

 0
9

Ja
n.

 1
0

Ja
n.

 1
1

Ja
n.

 1
2

Ja
n.

 1
3

Ja
n.

 1
4

Ja
n.

 1
5

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

Goods Producing

2001 Recession 2007-2009 Recession

2,800

2,900

3,000

3,100

3,200

3,300

3,400

3,500

3,600

3,700

Ja
n.

 0
0

Ja
n.

 0
1

Ja
n.

 0
2

Ja
n.

 0
3

Ja
n.

 0
4

Ja
n.

 0
5

Ja
n.

 0
6

Ja
n.

 0
7

Ja
n.

 0
8

Ja
n.

 0
9

Ja
n.

 1
0

Ja
n.

 1
1

Ja
n.

 1
2

Ja
n.

 1
3

Ja
n.

 1
4

Ja
n.

 1
5

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

Service Providing

2001 Recession 2007-2009 Recession

December 2007: 792,000

June 2009: 641,600

October 2015: 660,100

March 2001: 2,960,000

November 2001: 2,942,700

December 2007: 3,375,800

October 2015: 3,605,400

June 2009: 3,255,100

March 2001: 970,400

November 2001: 904,000

Page 118 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx
http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


North Carolina Industry Supersector Employment
October 2015

(Not Seasonally Adjusted, In Thousands)

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. 
P Preliminary; B Benchmarked; more information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx

The October 2015 not seasonally adjusted Total Nonfarm employment level of 4,303,500 was 25,400 higher than 
September 2015. Seven of the eleven major industries in North Carolina showed an over-the-month increase. 
Government had the largest increase in employment at 19,200 (2.7%) followed by Education & Health Services, 5,500 
(0.9%); Professional & Business Services, 4,800 (0.8%); Trade, Transportation & Utilities, 3,500 (0.4%); Construction, 1,900 
(1.0%); Other Services, 1,500 (1.0%) and Information, 300 (0.4%).

Of the remaining four major industries, Leisure & Hospitality had the largest decrease in employment at 8,800 (1.9%) 
followed by Financial Activities 2,000 (0.9%) and Manufacturing, 500 (0.1%). Mining & Logging remained unchanged 
(5,500). 

Over the year, the Service Providing sector (all industries except Mining & Logging, Construction, and Manufacturing) 
showed an increase of 72,100 (2.0%) jobs. Professional & Business Services, 20,900 (3.6%) experienced the greatest 
increase followed by Education & Health Services, 13,400 (2.3%); Trade, Transportation & Utilities, 10,100 (1.3%); 
Financial Activities, 9,700 (4.6%); Leisure & Hospitality, 8,400 (1.9%); Other Services, 5,400 (3.6%); Government, 2,300 
(0.3%) and Information, 1,900 (2.6%). 

The Goods Producing sector had a net gain of 19,500 (3.0%) jobs over the year. Construction increased by 10,600 
(5.8%) jobs; Manufacturing added 9,000 (2.0%) jobs and Mining & Logging decreased by 100 (1.8%). 

Total Employment Net & Percent Change

NAICS Industry
OctoberP

2015
SeptemberB

2015
OctoberB

2014
From September

2015
From October 

2014

Net Percent Net Percent

Total Nonfarm 4,303.5 4,278.1 4,211.9 25.4 0.6% 91.6 2.2%

Total Private 3,570.3 3,564.1 3,481.0 6.2 0.2% 89.3 2.6%

Goods Producing 664.5 663.1 645.0 1.4 0.2% 19.5 3.0%

Service Providing 3,639.0 3,615.0 3,566.9 24.0 0.7% 72.1 2.0%

Private Service Providing 2,905.8 2,901.0 2,836.0 4.8 0.2% 69.8 2.5%

Mining & Logging 5.5 5.5 5.6 0.0 0.0% -0.1 -1.8%

Construction 194.9 193.0 184.3 1.9 1.0% 10.6 5.8%

Manufacturing 464.1 464.6 455.1 -0.5 -0.1% 9.0 2.0%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 793.5 790.0 783.4 3.5 0.4% 10.1 1.3%

Information 75.1 74.8 73.2 0.3 0.4% 1.9 2.6%

Financial Activities 221.7 223.7 212.0 -2.0 -0.9% 9.7 4.6%

Professional & Business Services 606.9 602.1 586.0 4.8 0.8% 20.9 3.6%

Education & Health Services 591.8 586.3 578.4 5.5 0.9% 13.4 2.3%

Leisure & Hospitality Services 459.5 468.3 451.1 -8.8 -1.9% 8.4 1.9%

Other Services 157.3 155.8 151.9 1.5 1.0% 5.4 3.6%

Government 733.2 714.0 730.9 19.2 2.7% 2.3 0.3%

November 2015 NC Today      9   

Page 119 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


North Carolina MSA Total Nonfarm Employment
October 2015

(Not Seasonally Adjusted, In Thousands)

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. 
P Preliminary; B Benchmarked; more information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx. *Only includes claims activity in North Carolina.

In September 2015 not seasonally adjusted data, North Carolina’s Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSAs) Total Nonfarm 
employment varied. The Winston-Salem MSA posted the largest increase of 5,200 jobs, while the Charlotte/Concord/
Gastonia MSA had the greatest loss at 2,400 jobs.       

Mining, Logging & Construction employment remained unchanged in all but four MSAs. Charlotte/Concord/
Gastonia  reported the largest loss at 700 jobs, followed by Raleigh (400), Durham/Chapel Hill (100), and Winston-
Salem (100).     

Manufacturing employment varied across the MSAs. Winston-Salem had the highest gain of 500 jobs, while 
Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia posted the largest loss at 1,300 jobs due to a decrease in Durable Goods (1,500) and a 
gain in Nondurable Goods (200).   

Trade, Transportation & Utilities employment varied across the MSAs. Asheville and Greensboro/High Point 
showed the largest increases at 500 jobs each due to gains in Retail Trade (400) and Transportation, Warehousing & 
Utilities (100). Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia had the largest decrease of 2,600 jobs due to losses in Retail Trade (1,700); 
Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities (500); and Wholesale Trade (400).  

Information employment either decreased or remained unchanged across the MSAs. Raleigh had the largest loss at 
300 jobs. 

Financial Activities employment varied across the MSAs. Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia reported the greatest loss of 
300 jobs due to decreases in Real Estate & Rental & Leasing (200), and Finance & Insurance (100). Greensboro/High 
Point and Raleigh each posted a gain of 100 jobs.       

Professional & Business Services employment varied across the MSAs. Winston-Salem had the largest increase of 
1,500 jobs with all of the gain coming from Administrative Support, Waste Management & Remediation Services.  
Greensboro/High Point experienced the greatest loss of 1,000 jobs due to declines in Administrative Support, Waste 
Management & Remediation Services (700), and Professional, Scientific & Technical Services (300). 
 
Education & Health Services employment increased all but one MSA. Greensboro/High Point had the greatest 
growth with 1,400 jobs, while Greenville remained at 9,800.   

Total Employment Net & Percent Change

Metropolitan Statistical Area OctoberP

2015
SeptemberB

2015
OctoberB

2014
From September

2015
From October

2014
Net Percent Net Percent

Asheville 183.4 183.0 182.1 0.4 0.2% 1.3 0.7%

Burlington 61.8 61.3 60.3 0.5 0.8% 1.5 2.5%

Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia, NC-SC* 1,120.5 1,107.1 1,084.8 13.4 1.2% 35.7 3.3%

Durham/Chapel Hill 301.2 299.2 291.6 2.0 0.7% 9.6 3.3%

Fayetteville 127.5 127.3 127.8 0.2 0.2% -0.3 -0.2%

Goldsboro 41.8 41.5 42.7 0.3 0.7% -0.9 -2.1%

Greensboro/High Point 363.3 359.8 352.9 3.5 1.0% 10.4 2.9%

Greenville 78.9 78.7 78.1 0.2 0.3% 0.8 1.0%

Hickory/Lenoir/Morganton 147.3 147.0 148.6 0.3 0.2% -1.3 -0.9%

Jacksonville 50.0 49.7 49.7 0.3 0.6% 0.3 0.6%

New Bern 43.6 43.5 44.0 0.1 0.2% -0.4 -0.9%

Raleigh 577.4 577.6 568.7 -0.2 0.0% 8.7 1.5%

Rocky Mount 57.8 55.9 58.2 1.9 3.4% -0.4 -0.7%

Wilmington 118.7 119.4 117.7 -0.7 -0.6% 1.0 0.8%

Winston-Salem 262.4 262.2 257.5 0.2 0.1% 4.9 1.9%

     10   November 2015 NC Today

Page 120 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


Leisure & Hospitality Services employment varied across the MSAs. Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia reported the 
greatest loss of 5,200 jobs due to decreases in Accommodation & Food Services (3,200), and Arts, Entertainment & 
Recreation (2,000). Hickory/Lenoir/Morganton and Winston-Salem both experienced the largest increases of 300 jobs. 

Other Services employment varied across the MSAs. Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia posted the largest gain of 800 jobs, 
while Raleigh had the greatest loss of 500 jobs.

Government employment increased across all of the MSAs. Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia had the largest gain of 6,000 
due to growth in Local Government (4,600) and State Government (1,400). Federal Government (9,800) showed no 
change over the month.

Not Seasonally Adjusted, the Manufacturing industrial sector lost 500 jobs over the month with a loss in Durable 
Goods (2,000) a gain in Non-Durable Goods (1,500). 

Over the year, Manufacturing increased by 9,000 jobs with a gain in Durable Goods (10,100) and a loss in Non-Durable 
Goods (1,100). 

Of North Carolina’s six largest Manufacturing industries in October 2005, five have experienced losses over the past 
ten years. Textile Mills lost 26,600 jobs; Furniture & Related Product, 18,700 jobs; Computer & Electronic Product, 6,500 
jobs; Fabricated Metal Product, 1,300 jobs and Chemical lost 900 jobs. Food gained 900 jobs.

Of North Carolina’s six largest Manufacturing industries in October 2010, three have experienced losses over the 
past five years. Computer & Electronic Product lost 2,000 jobs; Textile Mills lost 1,300 and Food lost 300 jobs. Of the 
remaining three, Fabricated Metal Product gained 5,900 jobs; Furniture & Related Product gained 3,500 jobs and 
Chemical increased by 1,700 jobs. 

Employment Change in North Carolina Manufacturing Industries
Comparison of October 2005, 2010 & 2015

(Not Seasonally Adjusted)

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce.    
Note: 2015 data are preliminary, while 2005 and 2010 data are benchmarked. More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx

November 2015 NC Today      11   

0

15

30

45

60

75

W
oo

d 
Pr

od
uc

t

Fa
br

ic
at

ed
 M

et
al

 P
ro

du
ct

M
ac

hi
ne

ry

Co
m

pu
te

rs
 &

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

Pr
od

uc
t

El
ec

tr
ic

al
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t &
 A

pp
lia

nc
es

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

Fu
rn

itu
re

 &
 R

el
at

ed
 P

ro
du

ct

Fo
od

Be
ve

ra
ge

s &
 T

ob
ac

co
 P

ro
du

ct

Te
xt

ile
 M

ill
s

Te
xt

ile
 P

ro
du

ct
 M

ill
s

Ap
pa

re
l M

fg
.

Pr
in

tin
g

Ch
em

ic
al

Pl
as

tic
s &

 R
ub

be
r

In
 T

ho
us

an
ds

October 2005 October 2010 October 2015

Page 121 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


Each month, the Current Employment Statistics program provides measures of payroll and hours for all employees of 
private Nonfarm establishments for the nation, each state, and more than 400 Metropolitan Statistical Areas.

In North Carolina, Total Private Hours and Earnings posted an over-the-month increase in Average Weekly Earnings, 
Average Hourly Earnings and Average Weekly Hours. Average Weekly Earnings rose by $11.20 to $777.81, Average 
Hourly Earnings increased by $0.13 to $22.48 and Average Weekly Hours increased by 0.3 (18 minutes) at 34.6. Over-
the-year, Total Private Hours & Earnings posted gains in Average Weekly Earnings, $24.91 and Average Hourly Earnings, 
$0.72. Average Weekly Hours showed no change (34.6).
 
In North Carolina, Manufacturing Hours and Earnings posted over-the-month increases in Average Weekly Earnings 
and Average Weekly Hours, but a decrease in Average Hourly Earnings. Average Weekly Earnings increased by $7.19 to 
$860.67, Average Hourly Earnings fell by $0.08 to $20.89 and Average Weekly Hours rose by 0.5 (30 minutes) to 41.2. 
Over-the-year, Manufacturing Hours & Earnings posted losses in Average Weekly Earnings, $33.55, Average Hourly 
Earnings, $0.20 and Average Weekly Hours, 1.2 (72 minutes).

In North Carolina, Production Hours and Earnings posted an over-the-month increase in Average Hourly Earnings, 
Average Weekly Earnings and Average Weekly Hours. Average Hourly Earnings increased by $0.05 to $17.09, Average 
Weekly Earnings rose by $12.35 to $724.62 and Average Weekly Hours increased by 0.6 (36 minutes) to 42.4. Over the 
year, Production Hours & Earnings posted a gains in Average Hourly Earnings, $0.44 and Average Weekly Earnings, 
$3.67 and posted a loss in Average Weekly Hours 0.9 (54 minutes). 

Hours and Earnings
October 2014–October 2015

(Not Seasonally Adjusted)

Source: CES, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. Note: October 2015 data are preliminary, other 2015 data are revised, while 2014 data are 
benchmarked. More information can be found at: http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx

Average Weekly Hours Average Hourly Earnings Average Weekly Earnings

Total 
Private Mfg. Production Total 

Private Mfg. Production Total 
Private Mfg. Production

October 2014 34.6 42.4 43.3 $21.76 $21.09 $16.65 $752.90 $894.22 $720.95

November 35.1 43.0 43.6 $22.09 $21.28 $16.80 $775.36 $915.04 $732.48

December 34.7 42.6 43.4 $21.81 $21.13 $16.73 $756.81 $900.14 $726.08

January 34.2 41.7 42.4 $22.05 $21.25 $16.91 $754.11 $886.13 $716.98

February 34.5 41.3 41.9 $22.36 $21.44 $16.85 $771.42 $885.47 $706.02

March 34.9 41.8 43.0 $22.03 $21.19 $16.77 $768.85 $885.74 $721.11

April 34.4 41.3 42.8 $22.04 $21.27 $16.89 $758.18 $878.45 $722.89

May 34.5 41.3 42.5 $22.10 $21.35 $17.02 $762.45 $881.76 $723.35

June 34.5 40.9 42.5 $22.03 $21.09 $16.92 $760.04 $862.58 $719.10

July 34.5 40.8 41.6 $22.13 $21.01 $17.00 $763.49 $857.21 $707.20

August 35.0 41.3 42.1 $22.54 $21.15 $17.05 $788.90 $873.50 $717.81

September 34.3 40.7 41.8 $22.35 $20.97 $17.04 $766.61 $853.48 $712.27

October 2015 34.6 41.2 42.4 $22.48 $20.89 $17.09 $777.81 $860.67 $724.62

     12   November 2015 NC Today

Page 122 of 184

http://esesc23.esc.state.nc.us/d4/CesSelection.aspx


North Carolina Regular UI Initial Claims Activity 
October 2013–October 2015

Source: WRE, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. More information can be found at: https://www.ncesc1.com

North Carolina New Claims Activity 
October 2013–October 2015

Source: WRE, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. More information can be found at: https://www.ncesc1.com

Regular Initial Claims, which totaled 16,720 for the month ending October 31, 2015, increased 786 (5%) from the prior 
month’s total of 15,934. Regular Initial Claims were down 6,107 (27%) compared to 22,827 in October 2014; decreased 
12,422 (43%) compared to 29,142 in 2013; fell 42,398 (72%) compared to 59,118 in 2012; dropped 41,690 (71%) 
compared to 58,410 in 2011; and decreased 48,505 (74%) compared to 65,225 in October 2010.

Attached Initial Claims accounted for less than 1.0 percent of the Initial Claims for the months ending 10/31/15; 
10/31/14; and 10/31/13. They accounted for 27,825 (47%) of the 59,118 Initial Claims for the same period in 2012; 
25,586 (44%) of 58,410 claims in 2011; and 30,818 (47%) of 65,225 claims in 2010.

For the month ending October 31, 2015, the increases in Initial Claims were most notable in the following industries: 
Administrative and Support Services; Specialty Trade Contractors; Truck Transportation; Plastics and Rubber Products 
Manufacturing; Heavy and Civil Engineering Construction; Construction of Buildings; Apparel Manufacturing; Real 
Estate; Textile Mills; and Social Assistance. The decreases in Initial Claims were most notable in the following industries: 
Fabricated Metal Product Manufacturing; Transportation Equipment Manufacturing; Food and Beverage Stores.

November 2015 NC Today      13   

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

O
ct

. 1
3

Ja
n.

 1
4

Ap
ril

 1
5

Ju
ly

 1
4

O
ct

. 1
4

Ja
n.

 1
5

Ap
ril

 1
5

Ju
ly

 1
5

O
ct

. 1
5

0

20,000

40,000

60,000
Oc

t. 
13

Ja
n.

 1
4

Ap
ril

 1
4

Ju
ly

 1
4

Oc
t. 

14

Ja
n.

 1
5

Ap
ril

 1
5

Ju
ly

 1
5

Oc
t. 

15

October 2015: 16,720

October 2013: 29,142

October 2015: 15,234

October 2013: 23,974

Page 123 of 184



North Carolina MSA Regular UI Initial Claims Activity 
October 2015

Source: WRE, Labor & Economic Analysis Division, North Carolina Department of Commerce. Note: ‘Regular Initial Claims’ represent transactions and not individuals. 
*Does not include Extended Benefits and Federal Additional Compensation. **Only includes claims activity in North Carolina.  More information can be found at: https://www.ncesc1.com

The Division of Employment Security paid $18,006,353 in Unemployment Insurance (UI) benefits to unemployed 
claimants across North Carolina during October 2015.  These payments include state and federally funded benefits. 
North Carolina paid $17,467,203 in regular UI benefits from the State UI program to 22,545 individuals during 
the month — a decrease of 1,408 claimants since September 2015. A total of $524,418 in benefits was paid in 
Unemployment Compensation for Federal Employees (UCFE) and Unemployment Compensation for Ex-Service 
Members (UCX) administered under Regular UI. There were 71,831 weeks compensated for Regular UI under the State 
UI program, with an average UI weekly benefit amount of $243.17 (maximum weekly benefit is $350). 

In October 2015, benefits paid for the Emergency Unemployment Compensation EUC (all tiers), Extended Benefits 
(EB) and Federal Additional Compensation (FAC) programs totaled $14,732. These benefits were paid through federal 
dollars. The Emergency Unemployment Compensation program (EUC08) ended in North Carolina on June 29, 2013; 
however, North Carolina will continue to pay EUC08 benefits for weeks prior to this date.

During October 2015, the NC UI Trust and State Reserve Funds collected $63.8 million in UI taxes and reported interest 
of $5.0 million. The Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund balance was $785.4 million on October 31, 2015. The State 
Reserve Fund had a balance of $225.6 million.

Transactions Individuals

Metropolitan Statistical Area Initial
Claims Female African-

American White 45 Years 
and Older

Regular UI
Benefits*

Asheville  431 211 34 369 183 $433,423

Burlington  261 122 90 154 86 $223,502

Charlotte/Concord/Gastonia, NC-SC**  3,563 1,700 1,650 1,645 1,335 $4,012,300

Durham-Chapel Hill  752 390 422 278 281 $826,043

Fayetteville  787 394 485 204 260 $563,726

Goldsboro  208 92 127 66 53 $142,712

Greensboro-High Point  1,364 666 622 667 535 $1,394,772

Greenville  332 142 214 101 103 $212,236

Hickory/Lenoir/Morganton  608 299 81 479 260 $482,539

Jacksonville  269 133 71 171 85 $221,138

Myrtle Beach/Conway/North Myrtle Beach, SC-NC**  197 76 45 136 92 $185,043

New Bern  181 77 88 87 64 $149,818

Raleigh  1,862 887 756 934 793 $2,420,253

Rocky Mount  369 195 277 76 127 $311,455

Virginia Beach-Norfolk-Newport News, VA-NC**  59 30 7 50 32 $36,644

Wilmington  471 227 131 318 179 $533,008

Winston-Salem  885 418 318 515 384 $1,063,583

MSA Total 12,599 6,059 5,418 6,250 4,852 $13,212,195

NC Statewide Total 16,720 7,917 7,147 8,289 6,315 $17,467,203

Percent of MSA Total of NC Statewide Total 75.4% 76.5% 75.8% 75.4% 76.8% 75.6%

     14   November 2015 NC Today

Page 124 of 184



Employment: Used in Current Employment Statistics (CES), industry or establishment data referring to persons on 
establishment payrolls who received pay for any part of the pay period that includes the 12th day of the month. The 
data exclude proprietors, the unincorporated self-employed, unpaid volunteer or family workers, farm workers, 
and domestic workers. Salaried officers of corporations are included. Government employment covers only civilian 
employees; military personnel are excluded. Employees of the Central Intelligence Agency, the National Security 
Agency, the National Imagery and Mapping Agency, and the Defense Intelligence Agency also are excluded. Persons 
on establishment payrolls who are on paid sick leave (for cases in which pay is received directly from the firm), on paid 
holiday, or on paid vacation, or who work during a part of the pay period even though they are unemployed, or on 
strike during the rest of the period, are counted as employed. Not counted as employed are persons who are on layoff, 
on leave without pay, or on strike for the entire period, or who were hired but have not yet reported during 
the period. Employment is calculated by work location, not residency. Individuals may be counted more than once if 
they hold multiple jobs.

Used in Local Area Unemployment Statistics (LAUS), individuals 16 years of age and older who worked during the 
week that includes the 12th of the month for, (a) pay, (b) unpaid for 15 hours or more in a family-owned business, or (c) 
in their own business, profession or farm. Persons temporarily absent from their jobs due to illness, bad 
weather, vacation, labor dispute, or personal reasons are included. Individuals whose only activity consists of work 
around the house and/or volunteer work for religious, charitable, and similar organizations are excluded. Employment 
is calculated by residency, not work location. Each employed person is counted once even if working multiple jobs.

Extended Benefits (EB): The supplemental program that pays extended compensation during periods of specified 
high unemployment in a state to individuals for weeks of unemployment after exhaustion of regular Unemployment 
Insurance benefits. One-half of EB is funded by the state trust fund. The beginning date, duration and ending date of 
this program are “triggered” by a specified unemployment rate during a specified period of time.

Federal Additional Compensation (FAC): A supplemental program that pays an additional $25 for any week for 
which an individual is eligible to receive at least $1.00 under any unemployment compensation program currently in 
effect.

Full-time Workers: Persons who work 35 hours or more per week.

Goods Producing: Industries including Mining, Construction and Manufacturing.

Hours of Work: The number of hours worked during the survey week. Individuals who work at least 35 hours are 
designated full-time workers; persons who work less than that are considered part time.

Industry: A group of establishments that produce similar products or provide similar services. For example, all 
establishments that manufacture automobiles are in the same industry. A given industry, or even a particular 
establishment in that industry, might have employees in dozens of occupations. The North American Industry 
Classification System (NAICS) groups similar establishments into industries.

Initial Claim: Includes new and additional initial claims. An additional initial claim is a subsequent initial claim filed to 
reopen a claim series during an existing benefit year. This occurs if a person again becomes unemployed when a break 
of one week or more has occurred in the claim series due to intervening employment.

Interest Earned: The amount of interest earned on the Unemployment Trust Fund account (unpublished US Treasury 
reports).

Labor Force Participation Rate (LFP): The proportion of the civilian noninstitutional population that is in the civilian 
labor force (e.g. employed or unemployed and actively seeking work). 

Labor Market Information: Used to describe the delivery of labor force, employment, unemployment, wage, supply 
and demand, occupational, industrial, economic, and demographic data for the analysis of manpower problems.

Glossary of Terms

November 2015 NC Today      15   

Page 125 of 184



Local Area Unemployment Statistics (LAUS): A federal Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS)/state North Carolina 
Department of Commerce, Labor and Economic Analysis Division cooperative statistical program which produces 
monthly and annual labor force, employment, unemployment, and unemployment rate estimates by place of 
residence for many geographic regions including states, counties, metropolitan and micropolitan statistical areas, and 
selected cities.

Manufacturing Hours and Earnings: Based on gross payrolls and corresponding paid hours:
Total Private Hours and Earnings – Includes data collected for all paid, private-sector workers (including 
production employees). Executives, managers and supervisors are excluded.
All Employees Hours and Earnings – Reported as all persons who received pay (including holiday and sick) for any 
part of the payroll period including the 12th day of the month. 
Production Workers Hours and Earnings – Workers in the Goods Producing industries up through the level of 
working supervisors who engage directly in the manufacturing of the establishment’s product. 
Total Gross Pay – Includes regular wages and salaries, paid leave, incentive pay, bonuses paid each pay period and 
severance paid over multiple pay periods. Commissions are reported if they are paid at least monthly. Irregular 
lump sum payments are excluded. 

Maximum Weekly Benefit Amount: The highest weekly benefit amount provided for a week of total unemployment.

Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA): A federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) defined area having at least 
one urbanized area with a population of 50,000 or more. MSAs may include adjacent counties that have a high degree 
of social and economic integration with the urban core as measured by commuting patterns. North Carolina has 14 
MSAs consisting of 39 counties.

Minimum Weekly Benefit Amount: The lowest weekly benefit amount for a week of total unemployment.

New Claim: The first initial claim filed in person, by mail, telephone, or other means within a benefit year to request a 
determination of entitlement to and eligibility for compensation. This result in an agency generated document of an 
appealable monetary determination provided to the potential claimant. 

Outstanding Loan Balance: Balance, as of the end of the quarter, of advances acquired by the state under Title XII of 
the Social Security Act (unpublished US Treasury reports).

Nondurable Goods: Known as “soft goods,” nondurable goods refer to manufactured or processed items generally 
considered to last for a short time — three years or less. The nondurable manufacturing industries include Food; 
Beverage & Tobacco Product; Textile Mills; Textile Product Mills; Apparel; Printing & Related Support Activities; 
Chemical; and Plastics & Rubber Products. 

North American Industry Classification (NAICS): An industrial classification system using a production-based 
framework, with special attention to new and emerging industries (service industries in general) and industries 
involved in advanced technology. It is an outgrowth of the North American Free Trade Act (NAFTA) and allows the 
collection and tabulation of industry-level data to measure the economic impact of employers shifting activities 
between Canada, Mexico and the United States. Classification is by major economic group or sector (two-digit), 
economic subsector (three-digit), industry group (four-digit), industry level (five-digit), and national industry level (six-
digit, optional) in order of increasing detail. Conversion from Standard Industrial Classification system (SIC) to NAICS 
was a three-year cycle that began with data collected in 1999. CES industries are often combinations of several NAICS 
codes. 

Not Seasonally Adjusted: An economic time series that is not statistically adjusted to eliminate seasonal fluctuations 
such as weather, holidays and the opening and closing of schools. This data is not comparable month to month. All 
levels of civilian labor force and CES estimates have a not seasonally adjusted series.

Part-time Workers: Persons who work less than 35 hours per week.
Part-time Workers (Economic Reasons) – Persons who work less than 35 hours weekly, but prefer to work full time. 
Part-time Workers (Noneconomic Reasons) – Persons who prefer to work less than 35 hours a week (full time).

Private Service Providing: Industries that include Trade, Transportation & Utilities; Information; Financial Activities; 
Professional & Business; Education & Health; Leisure & Hospitality; and Other Services. Government is not included. 

     16   November 2015 NC Today

Page 126 of 184



Seasonally Adjusted: A statistical adjustment eliminating the influence of weather, holidays, the opening and 
closing of schools and other recurring seasonal events from an economic time series. By smoothing these seasonal 
fluctuations, the data is easier to compare month to month. Only the United States and North Carolina state civilian 
labor force and CES employment estimates are seasonally adjusted. Estimates for both series below the state level are 
unadjusted. 

Service Providing: Industries including Trade, Transportation & Utilities; Information; Financial Activities; Professional 
& Business; Education & Health; Leisure & Hospitality; Other Services and Government. 

Smoothed Seasonal Adjusted: Seasonally adjusted estimates that have incorporated a long-run trend smoothing 
procedure. This results in estimates that are less volatile and this smoothed seasonal adjustment procedure is now part 
of the LAUS estimation methodology.

Survey Week: The week each month that includes the 12th during which BLS conducts most of its surveys. Exception 
may be made in November and May when the survey week may be moved forward one week to avoid holiday 
collection and data problems. 

Unemployed: Persons having no employment during the week that includes the 12th of the month, but were available 
for work, had made specific efforts to find employment during the four weeks prior, were waiting to be recalled to a 
job from which they had been laid off, or were waiting to report to a new job within 30 days.

Unemployment Insurance: Unemployment insurance is a program for the accumulation of funds paid by employers, 
to be used for payment of unemployment insurance to workers during periods of job loss which is beyond their 
control. Unemployment insurance replaces a part of the worker’s wage loss if he/she becomes eligible for payments.

Unemployment Rate: The number of unemployed people as a percentage of the labor force 
[i.e., (unemployed/labor force) x 100].

Unemployment Compensation for Federal Employees (UCFE): Federally financed program to provide 
unemployment insurance benefits to federal civilian employees.

Unemployment Compensation for Ex-Service Members (UCX): Federally financed program to provide 
unemployment insurance benefits to ex-service employees. 

Unemployment Trust Fund (UTF): A fund established in the Treasury of the United States which contains all monies 
deposited by state agencies to the credit of their unemployment fund accounts and federal unemployment taxes 
collected by the Internal Revenue Service.

Weekly Benefit Amount (WBA): The weekly benefit amount for an individual who is totally unemployed is an amount 
equal to the wages paid to the individual in the last two completed quarters of the individual’s base period divided 
by 52 and rounded to the next lower whole dollar. If this amount is less than $15.00, the individual is not eligible for 
benefits. The weekly benefit amount may not exceed $350.00. 

The weekly benefit amount for an individual who is partially unemployed or part-totally employed is the amount the 
individual would receive if they were totally unemployed, reduced by the amount of any wages the individual receives 
in the benefit week in excess of twenty percent (20%) of the benefit amount applicable to total unemployment and 
rounded to the next lower whole dollar.

Weeks Claimed: Weeks covered for which waiting period credit or payment of compensation is requested.

Weeks Compensated: The number of weeks claimed for which Unemployment Insurance benefits are paid.

November 2015 NC Today      17   

Page 127 of 184



Prepared by:

Page 128 of 184



Page 129 of 184



Page 130 of 184



Page 131 of 184



Page 132 of 184



Page 133 of 184



Page 134 of 184



Page 135 of 184



Page 136 of 184



Page 137 of 184



Page 138 of 184



Page 139 of 184



Page 140 of 184



Page 141 of 184



Page 142 of 184



Page 143 of 184



Page 144 of 184



Page 145 of 184



Page 146 of 184



Page 147 of 184



Page 148 of 184



Page 149 of 184



Page 150 of 184



Page 151 of 184



Page 152 of 184



Page 153 of 184



Page 154 of 184



1

Angela Wooten

From: NC
Sent: Tuesday, November 24, 2015 2:06 PM
To: info@camdencountync.gov
Subject: Governor Applauds Assistant Commerce Secretary Dale Folwell for his Public Service

 

 

Pat McCrory, Governor                                                                                 John E. Skvarla, III, Secretary 

                                                                                              

 
 

NORTH CAROLINA  
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

 

 

 

 

Governor Applauds Assistant Commerce Secretary Dale Folwell for his Public Service 

 

Raleigh, N.C. -- Governor Pat McCrory and Commerce Secretary John E. Skvarla, III, announced 
today that Dale Folwell, assistant secretary at Commerce’s Division of Employment Security (DES), 
would be stepping down from his position effective December 1st. 

“Dale has been our point man on long-overdue reforms to the state’s unemployment 
insurance system, and his leadership on those and other important issues has been 
critical to North Carolina’s economic comeback,” said Governor McCrory. “I am grateful 
for the energy and insight Dale brought to our administration and wish him the best in 
his next endeavors.” 

Folwell was appointed assistant secretary in March of 2013.  His responsibilities included overseeing 
the state’s unemployment insurance system, a role that includes all aspects of claim determination, 
employer account management and legal enforcement of employment security law. 

When Folwell assumed his duties at DES, North Carolina’s unemployment insurance system owed the 
federal government approximately $2.5 billion. The system now has a $1 billion surplus and growing. 
Reform efforts also resulted in significantly decreased wait times at the DES call center, faster 
disposition of cases and more effective procedures for identifying fraudulent claims.  

  Release: Immediate               Contact: Kim Genardo 
Date: November 24, 2015                    Phone: (919) 733‐3438 

Page 155 of 184



2

“Dale’s leadership of one of Commerce’s largest and most important divisions resulted in improved 
customer service, the adoption of new technologies, streamlined operations and an estimated 
collective savings for North Carolina employers of more than $600 million in federal and state taxes 
over the next year,” said Secretary Skvarla.  

Prior to arriving at Commerce, Folwell served four terms in the North Carolina House of 
Representatives, representing Forsyth County. He was elected as the Speaker Pro Tempore of the 
North Carolina House of Representatives for the 2011-2012 legislative sessions. 

“In March of 2013, I wasn’t surprised at the broke and broken NC unemployment system,” said 
Folwell.  “We immediately went to work to implement, not interpret, the new laws to reform the 
system. The Governor told us not to rest until every penny of debt was repaid, every phone call was 
answered, and the backlog resolved.  With the courage and creativity of our employees, the 
administration’s confidence, and the new law, we were able to go from bankruptcy to solvency in 30 
months. I have loved being a leader of a turnaround team who tore DES apart and correctly put it 
back together again.  An accomplishment is an accomplishment for only as long as it lasts. I’m leaving 
DES confident that no North Carolina Governor will have to deal with a bankrupt system again.” 

Commerce Deputy Assistant Secretary Ted Brinn will serve as interim assistant secretary at DES.  

 

You are currently subscribed to pressreleases as: info@camdencountync.gov. 
You may unsubscribe to discontinue these mailings. 

Page 156 of 184



Page 157 of 184



Page 158 of 184



Camden County Public Library 

November 2015 Statistics 

 
 

 Visitor Count: 1,939 

 Days/Hours Open: 26/214 

 # Items in Collection: 12,463 (Opening Day Collection # Items = 4,755) 

 Total Check Outs/Renewals: 3,346 

 Library Card Holders: 2,442 

 Computer/ Wireless Use: 118 

 Juvenile Programs : 13 programs / 239 attendance 

 Adult Programs :  3 programs /  17 attendance 

 Meeting Room: 6 reservations / 58 attendance 

 

 

 
Daily attendance for the month of November, compared by year (2013-2015). 

 

1199 

1959 1939 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Nov 2013 Nov 2014 Nov 2015

Attendance 

Page 159 of 184



 
Number of library materials checked out in November, compared by year (2013-2015). 

 

2,045 

2,910 

3,346 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

Nov 2013 Nov 2014 Nov 2015

Circulation 

Page 160 of 184



Pasquotank-Camden EMS Camden Response Times - October 2015

Timesmeasured are from 0700 to 2100 when at least one ambulance is stationecf in Camden

Call Date Location En Route On Scene Response Time

10/1/2015 916 Sandy Hook Road 11:31 11:43 0:12

10/2/2015 235 Sleepy Hollow Road 8:16 8:25 0:09

109 Nikkis Lane 16:01 16:08 0:07

199 Neck Road 20:38 20:51 0:13

10/3/2015 145 Milltown Road 16:27 16:36 0:09

10/4/2015 1044 S 343 Hwy 14:42 14:50 0:08

454 Trotman Rd 17:38 17:49 0:11

10/5/2015 308 Main Street 12:21 12:25 0:04

10/6/2015 103 Camden Ave 8:04 8:21 0:17

916 Sandy Hook Road 12:29 12:43 0:14

141 Taylor's Lane 19:10 19:15 0:05

10/7/2015 916 Sandy Hook Road 11:12 11:26 0:14

109 Riverview Ave 11:43 11:55 0:12

10/8/2015 109 Sunset Ave 8:25 8:45 0:20

10/9/2015 191 US 158 Hwy 16:03 16:06 0:03

118 Moprissettes Rd 18:03 18:07 0:04

10/10/2015 140 Keeter Barn Rd 12:10 12:15 0:05

188 Keeter Barn Rd 17:44 17:48 0:04

10/11/2015 945 Sandy Hook Rd 11:56 12:08 0:12

103 W US 158 Hwy 17:15 17:20 0:05

475 Sandy Hook Rd 19:10 19:27 0:17

10/12/2015 103 W 158 Hwy 10:38 10:41 0:03

N 343/River Bridge 19:01 19:07 0:06

10/13/2015 916 Sandy Hook Rd 7:54 8:10 0:16

Old Swamp Rd/Stlles Ln 12:40 12:44 0:04

161 Texas Rd 15:31 15:45 0:14

10/14/2015 393 Ivy Neck Rd 11:28 11:35 0:07

10/15/2015 270TraftonRd 12:03 12:08 0:05

103 W US 158 Hwy 13:51 14:02 0:11

10/16/2015 150 W US 158 Hwy 10:58 11:01 0:03

10/17/2015 274 Belcross Rd 11:41 11:46 0:05
10/17/2015 270 Trafton Rd 19:30 19:40 0:10

10/18/2015 622 Old Swamp Road 8:06 8:14 0:08
274 Belcross Rd 9:39 9:44 0:05

384 Ivy Neck Rd 15:22 15:28 0:06

744 Sandy Hook Rd 20:45 20:57 0:12

10/19/2015 744 Sandy Hook Rd 9:15 9:26 0:11

916 Sandy Hook Rd 12:22 12:33 0:11

123 Noblitt Dr 14:58 15:00 0:02

10/20/2015 239 Palmer Rd 15:58 16:04 0:06

297 Stingy Ln 18:03 18:11 0:08

10/21/2015 152 Milltown Rd 19:16 19:29 0:13

10/22/2015 150 W US 158 Hwy 11:17 11:21 0:04

137 Country Meadows Dr 16:37 16:51 0:14

10/24/2015 133 Pudding Ridge Road 18:59 19:04 0:05

10/28/2015 916 Sandy Hook Rd 14:21 14:33 0:12

10/29/2015 189 W US 158 Hwy 14:35 14:36 0:01

137 Baybreeze Dr 15:46 16:03 0:17

132 Raymons Creek Rd 17:16 17:28 0:12

10/30/2015 207 Riverview Ave 10:58 11:05 0:07

10/31/2015 106 Publo Rd 12:32 12:39 0:07

260 Belcross Rd 15:26 15:32 0:06

Camden Average Response Times 0:08

Page 161 of 184



Pasquotank-Camden EMS FY2016 Projections

Month FY 2016 Call Volume FY 2016 Collections FY 2016 Expenditures

July 1019 $202,625 $520,509

August 1065 $235,353 $355,308

September 942 $285,146 $445,030

October 935 $253,499 $365,071

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

June

Encumbrances $121,855

FY 2015 Actual Totals 3961 $976,624 $1,807,773

FY2015 Projections 10080 $2,730,600 $4,339,450

%ofprojections 39% 36% 42%

Page 162 of 184



Emergency Medical Services Board
Agenda

November 18, 2015

• Approval of Minutes

• EMS Nurse Liaison's Report

• Rescue Squad Report

• Medical Director's Report

• County Manager's Report
o Pasquotank County
o Camden County

• EMS Department Report

• New Business

• Closed Session

• Adjournment

Page 163 of 184



Monthly Report
for

October 2015

Ambulance Responses: MTD MTD YTD YTD

2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015

Total Responses 935 1060 3961 3798

Camden County 74 77 263 220

Blackwater 0 0 0 0

Pasquotank County 651 767 2895 2802

Albemarle Hospital 210 216 803 776

Advanced Life Support 300 270 1245 1101

Basic Life Support 417 559 1854 1919 Emergency

Treatment/No Tx 2 6 25 18 Transports

Patient Refusal 97 117 396 356 85

Cancelled Enroute 47 39 177 134

Standby-Event 9 8 30 34 Non-Emergency

Standby-Helo 0 0 Transports

Standby-Fire 14 8 33 29 252

Mutual Aid 1 4 4

Miscellaneous 48

935

53

1060

197

3961

203

3798

Accounts Receivable: MTD YTD LYYTD

A/R Beginning Balance $1,790,776.11 + $ 1,743,535.68

Patient Billings $ 410,301.40 + $ 1,711,900.20 $ 1,598,470.80

Refunds $ 2,849.36 + $ 6,899.56 $ 6,665.38

Patient Credits $ 253,499.36 - $ 976,623.65 $ 909,371.81

Ins. Contract Adj. $ 118,658.82 - $ 486,691.36 $ 437,206.54

Write OfTs $ 34,625.09 - $ 121,893.99 $ 187,704.71

Late PCR's +

Adjustment $ (4,063.45) +

A/R Ending Balance $1,793,080.15 LYMTD $ 1,721,726.02

Deposits to Finance Office $ 178,438.55 + $ 183,324.96

Recovery from Bad Debt $ 11.81 -

Misc. Revenue $ 111.59 -

A/R Payment to Finance $ 75,184.21 + Notes:

Adjustment Added + Mileage/Ins adj

Adjustment Subtracted
•

Total $ 253,499.36

Page 164 of 184



EMS Board Minutes

October 14, 2015

The Pasquotank-Camden Emergency Medical Services Board meeting was held on Wednesday,

October 14, 2015, at the Pasquotank-Camden EMS Administrative Building.

Ms. Sue Meads called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.

Members Present:

Frankie Meads

Jeff Dixon

Garry Meiggs

Sue Meads

Mike Straka (for Sam Furia)

Members Absent:

Chris Ayers (Excused)

Tom White

Others Present:

Michael Renshaw

Rodney Bunch

Jerry Newell

Walter Meads

Nettie Marshall

Deborah Holland

Carla Godwin

KellySchweers

Michael Mitchell

The minutes from the September meeting were reviewed. Mr. Jeff Dixon made a motion to

accept the minutes. Mr. Frankie Meads seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Page 165 of 184



Sentara Albemarle Medical Center:

• Ms. Kelly Schweers provided handouts which are shown in the attachments regarding

data collected from December 2014-August 2015 showing recent initiatives and in

patient updates for the ER.

• Ms. Schweers provided another handout as shown below showing pictures of the new

ultrasound (SonoSite) and Glidescope that they have obtained along with ordering ten

new stretchers and bed side tables.

• Ms. Schweers reported that they are currently working on Tele-Stroke which is a service

used by providers to provide consults to patients through a computer screen.

• They have also been preparing brochures for SAMC Emergency Department.

Rescue Squad:

• Mr. Jerry Newell reported that both the Rescue Squad and PCEMS are working on a

50/50 grant in order to get power stretchers and communication gear.

• They have sent out seventeen letters of intent to members who have not pulled duty in

several months.

• 3 new members have been voted in, one being an EMTand the other two are currently

working on their certification.

• The two new members who are not currently EMT's will be observing until certification

has been obtained.

Medical Director:

• Mr. Mike Straka reported that they continue to work on updating protocols and getting

additional training for the trauma classes.

County Managers:

• None

Page 166 of 184



EMS Department:

• Mr. Jerry Newell reported that the new remount (Rescue 6) is in and was picked up

several weeks ago.

• Mr. Newell stated that Northwestern Emergency Vehicles has offered $2500 for the

chassis that was previously on the remount; it had about a quarter of a million miles on

it.

• A motion was made by Mr. Frankie Meads to move forward in the process of locally

advertising the chassis for a 10 day period, if nothing is offered greater than the amount

Northwestern is willing to offer they will then move forward with selling the chassis to

Northwestern. Jeff Dixon seconded the motion, motion was carried.

• A training ambulance donation was made to our EMSSystem from Northwestern.

• Mr. Newell stated that we will start outfitting the new training ambulance soon.

• The donated ambulance will only be used for training purposes.

• Mr. Newell presented the financial report along with the revenue and expenditure

report.

• Mr. Newell also presented a letter of forgiveness for a patient with a balance of one

hundred dollars; a decision was then made for the patient to make monthly payments

under a forbearance agreement.

• Mr. Newell then made a proposal of moving two permanent part-time positions into

two full-time positions with the NET crews since they are already currently working 39

hours a week.

• A motion was made by Mr. Jeff Dixon. Mr. Frankie Meads seconded the motion; the

motion was carried.

• Ms. Carla Godwin reported that a few weeks ago the EMS Department had about 4-5

individuals come down from River City Community Development for some work force

training and their educator had sent a thank you letter for their services.

• Ms. Godwin also reminded us that the department will be receiving their simulation

manikin within the next week.

New Business:

• None

Closed Session:

• None

With no further business to discuss, Mr. Jeff Dixon made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr.

Gary Meiggs seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Page 167 of 184



The meeting was adjourned at 2:30 p.m. The next EMS Board Meeting is scheduled for

Wednesday November 18, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. in the conference room of the EMS Administrative

Building.

Page 168 of 184



SENTARA*

HAPPY EMERGENCY NURSES WFKK

Octoher 11-17

Dec

2D14

Jan

2015

Feb

2015

Mar

2015

Apr
2015

May
2D15

Juti
2015

Jul

2015 2015

Volume 4116 3709 3413 3825 3653 3938 3741 3975 3361

Admisikms 434 448 420 465 407 435 395 410 417

was 3.096 45% 3.9H 15% 1-9K 1.1% 2.3ft 1.7*

79

2.1%

1<L4Transfers 84 •50 92 10B 102 116 94

Length of 5tav-Ad mined -
median

353 358 321 346 292 304 309 296 291

Length of Stay -Disch arged-
medlan

158 161 147 142 132 126 130 132 135

Doer to pfOtflder-medlan

In bad to provider-median 3

75

4 3 3 4 3 3 1 3 3

initial contact until care

complete-median
BS 87 S7 90 85 813 &5 36

P fyn:< iticii! ,•0 r. • ' 6 V: »K «1V

vijisfrf' tiOi
ifi-^ h !i *e ti n s

*month to date-Incomplete data set

Metrics Tsiketiwavs

• Slight increase in I..WHS raic and significant Increase in transfers

Page 169 of 184



S E N T A R A*

Providers continue to see patients promptly once they arc in a bed and time from
provider firstcontact to care complete has remainedsteady

Recent Initiatives

» Participated asguest, jn Chamber of Commerce Radio ShowWRVS $9.9FMto promote recent
improvements in the Emergent.}' Departmern and newinitiatives at SentaraAlbemarle Medical
Center

• Met with Port Human Services to foster increased collaboration and enhance outpatient

psychiatric care

•PartneringwithVirginia Beachas sister hospital to facilitate EDto ED transfVrs

• Obtained new Ultrasound (SonoSite). GlideEcopc, and watting ncv. stretchers and bedside

tables.

• Received our DNV-GL certification

Patient Experience

• Departmental brochure* being treated for yreater patient awareness of EC experience

In-Patient:

• Step Down Unit: Has Increased to a40 bed Unic (Ten morebeds expected in December)

•Second Floor: Has increased to a 34 bed Unit

• Tele-Stroke: Working on Gap Analysis and expected tclc-strokc evaluations by February

Pumps:

• If you take a pump to transportone ofour patients... Plea.se do not leave it at our sister facility
if at all possible

Thank You £>

Page 170 of 184



S E N T A R A*

SonoSite

Glidescope

Page 171 of 184



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   1 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  1 

Regular Meeting 2 

October 5th, 2015 3 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 4 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 5 

Camden, North Carolina 6 

 7 

 8 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on 9 

October 5th, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The following 10 

Commissioners were present: 11 

 12 

Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall and, 13 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White 14 

 15 

Also attending were County Manager Michael Renshaw, County Attorney John 16 

Morrison and Clerk to the Board Angela Wooten.  Present for purposes of making a 17 

presentation(s) or providing supporting information for agenda items were the 18 

following persons:  Planning Director Dan Porter, Drainage Engineer Greg Johnson 19 

 20 

Regular Session, 7:00 P.M. 21 

 22 

Chairman McLain called to order the October 5th, 2015 meeting of the Camden County 23 

Board of Commissioners at 7:01 PM. 24 

 25 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 26 

 27 

Commissioner Tom White gave the invocation and led those present in the Pledge of 28 

Allegiance. 29 

 30 

 31 

Public Comments 32 

 33 

 _____________    of Main St in South Mills came before the board with the following 34 

comments: 35 

  Elizabeth City SPCA is giving dog owners a hard time when the owners try to 36 

retrieve their lost dogs and overcharging owners.  37 

 38 

Samuel Nash of 960 N. Hwy 343 in Camden came before the board with the following 39 

comments: 40 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   2 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

  Elizabeth City SPCA is breaking the law by removing the dog collars. 41 

 42 

_____________    of South Mills came before the board with the following comments: 43 

 Cannot afford to pay $108.00 per lost dog. 44 

 45 

 46 

 47 

Consideration of Agenda  48 

 49 

Chairman McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Vice Chairwoman 50 

Sandra Duckwall requested to add Item 7.A - ABC Annual Report FY 2014-2015. 51 

 52 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  The 53 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 54 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; 55 

no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 56 

 57 

 58 

Old Business 59 

 60 

Item 3.A - Student Generation Rates 61 

 62 

The APFO Coordinating Committee met on April 16 and recommended changing the 63 

Student Generation Rate for tracking impacts of housing development. If approved the 64 

new rates will be applied to the beginning of the current school year and carried forward 65 

into future years.  66 

 67 

Planning Director Dan Porter presented a table showing existing rates versus the rates as 68 

calculated from actual development over the last 10 years. 69 

 70 

STUDENT GENERATION RATES 

 
Old Projection 

Actual 2003-2014 

 (641 Houses CO’d) 

 Rate Students Students Rate 

Elementary .2 1282 155 .2418 

Middle .12 76.92 149 .2324 

High .12 76.92 114 .1778 

Total .44 282.04 418 .6521 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   3 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

These rates were recommended to the Board of Commissioners on June 1, 2015 at which 71 

time the Commissioners asked for additional information related to analysis for various 72 

time frames. 73 

 74 

Staff recommended the board approve the new student generation rates as follows; 75 

 76 

Grandy  .............................................................................. 0.29 77 

Intermediate  .................................................................. 0.18 78 

Middle ................................................................................ 0.07 79 

High  ................................................................................... 0.13 80 

Total  ........................................................................... 0.67 81 

 82 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the rates as presented by staff.  83 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 84 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 85 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 86 

 87 

 88 

Public Hearings 89 

 90 

Item 4.A - Storm water Drainage Design Manual 91 

 92 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to go into public hearing for the 93 

Stormwater Drainage Design Manual at 7:20 PM.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman 94 

McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and 95 

Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no 96 

Commissioner not voting. 97 

 98 

Planning Director Dan Porter introduced Drainage Engineer Greg Johnson.  Mr. 99 

Johnson presented the draft Stormwater Design Drainage Manual and gave a detailed 100 

presentation to the board. 101 

 102 

Public Comments 103 

 104 

_______________ - South Mills 105 

 River level is higher than land and states this design plan will not work 106 

 107 

Mark Bissell – A developer working in Camden 108 

 Appreciates his comments from March were addressed 109 

 Tough Manual but will serve the county well 110 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   4 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

 111 

Brian Lannon - Japonica Drive. In Camden  112 

 The manual needs to be a dynamic document that changes as our needs change 113 

 Land owners need to think in terms of  Community Solutions 114 

 115 

County Attorney John Morrison added that no action is required as this is a public 116 

hearing. 117 

 118 

Chairman McLain asked if there were any further comments from the public regarding 119 

this issue.  Hearing none, he called for a motion to close the public hearing. 120 

 121 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to close the public hearing at 8:05 PM.  The 122 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 123 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; 124 

no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 125 

 126 

 127 

New Business 128 

 129 

Item 5.A - Comprehensive Transportation Plan Amendment 130 

 131 

Nazia Sarder of NCDOT Transportation Planning Department explains the amendment 132 

of Camden’s Transportation plan she is requesting the board approve. 133 

 134 

A Comprehensive Transportation Plan is a 30 year plan that includes highway, rail, 135 

transit, bike and pedestrian.  Both the Camden and Currituck County Comprehensive 136 

Transportation Plans have been recommended by the Transportation Planning Branch 137 

to be amended. The major change made is the inclusion of an East-West Connector 138 

Road for both Camden and Currituck counties. The proposed project (East-West 139 

Connector, Local ID: CURR0010-H/CAMD0006-H) is to construct a 4-lane undivided 140 

boulevard on a new location in Moyock from NC 168 near the Virginia line in Currituck 141 

County to US 17 in northern Camden County. This project has impacted the route of the 142 

proposed NC 168 Bypass in Currituck County, which has been moved from south of SR 143 

1217 to the East West Connector. Changes were made to the narrative of the Ponderosa 144 

Drive Upgrade (CAMD0007-H) in Camden County. There are also updates to the Bicycle 145 

section of the CTP problem statement for both counties. These updates were 146 

incorporated from the Albemarle Regional Bicycle Plan. 147 

 148 

She presents the updated highway maps for Camden and Currituck’s Comprehensive 149 

Transportation Plans. 150 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   5 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

 151 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2015-10-02 152 

amending Camden’s Comprehensive Transportation Plan as presented.  The motion 153 

passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry 154 

Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 155 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 156 

 157 
Resolution No. 2015-10-02 158 

 159 
Adopting a Comprehensive Transportation Plan Addendum 160 

For Camden County, North Carolina 161 
 162 
WHEREAS, Camden County and the Transportation Planning Branch, North Carolina 163 
Department of Transportation actively worked to develop a comprehensive transportation plan addendum 164 
for Camden County; and 165 
 166 
WHEREAS, the County and the Department of Transportation are directed by North Carolina General 167 
Statutes 136-66.2 to reach agreement for a transportation system that will serve  present and anticipated 168 
volumes of traffic in the County; and 169 
 170 
WHEREAS, it is recognized that the proper movement of traffic within and through Camden County is a 171 
highly desirable element of the comprehensive plan for the orderly growth and development of the 172 
County; and 173 
 174 
WHEREAS, after full study of the plan, and following a public hearing held by Camden County, the Board 175 
of Commissioners feels it to be in the best interest of the County to adopt an addendum to the previously 176 
adopted comprehensive transportation plan pursuant to General Statutes 136- 66.2; 177 
 178 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Camden County Comprehensive 179 
Transportation Plan addendum be approved and adopted as a guide in the development of the 180 
transportation system in Camden County and the same is hereby recommended to the North Carolina 181 
Department of Transportation for its subsequent adoption. 182 
 183 
ADOPTED, this the 5th day of October 2015. 184 

 185 
 186 

Item 5.B - Great Dismal Swamp 9 Ball Classic 187 

 188 

"Jimmy" Cartwright, a property owner in Camden County on 343 and Whitehall Shores 189 

Rd. owns and operates “Colonial Cues” in Elizabeth City, NC.  190 

 191 

Mr. Cartwright comes to the board to inform Camden about the “Great Dismal Swamp 9 192 

Ball Classic" that will be held on October 23rd & 24th in his pool hall. This major 193 

tournament will feature 16 of the world’s greatest pool players including players from 194 

Greece, Spain, Philippines, London and Canada. He hopes that this tournament will 195 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   6 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

prove to bring an even larger event next year and become an annual or semiannual 196 

event. It will bring tourist from VA., Outer Banks, Delaware, and all over the US. 197 

 198 

Restaurants, service stations and motels in the surrounding areas will profit from the 199 

traffic.  The reason we expect so many people in the area is because we have the world 200 

champions playing here. "Shane Van Boening" and other Pros like Tommy Kennedy, 201 

Mike Gulyassy, Alex Kazakis of Greece, Oscar Dominguez of California, Imran Majid of 202 

London, Josh Brothers and many more which are the world’s best. 203 

 204 

All sponsors will have a banner posted on the wall of our shop for one year. Plus the 205 

event will be televised by InsidePOOLtv for a year which will be seen around the world. 206 

 207 

As you know an event of this type requires a lot of time and sponsors and I will 208 

appreciate anything our county can help with. Hopefully this will attract more tourists 209 

from out of town to the Camden County Visitors Center in connection to the Great 210 

Dismal Swamp. 211 

 212 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs suggests that the Mr. Cartwright present his request to 213 

Camden’s Tourism Development Authority. 214 

 215 

No Action Taken 216 

 217 
Item 5.C - Surplus Property Resolution 218 

 219 

Finance Officer Stephanie Humphries presented Resolution No. 2015-10-01 to authorize 220 

County Manager to dispose of surplus property per GS 160A-266 with report to board. 221 

Both resolution and statute have been attached. This procedure, while still allowing for 222 

board review of all sales, will expedite disposal of surplus property. This resolution 223 

applies only to county personal property such as vehicles, office equipment, etc., not real 224 

property or property seized/confiscated by Law Enforcement. 225 

 226 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2015-10.01.  The 227 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 228 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; 229 

no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 230 

 231 

RESOLUTION No. 2015-10-01 232 
 233 

AUTHORIZING COUNTY MANAGER TO DISPOSE OF SURPLUS PERSONAL 234 
PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 160A-266 235 

 236 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   7 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

WHEREAS, G.S 160A-266 provides authority for the governing body to delegate to the County Manager 237 
the authority to declare surplus any personal property with a value up to thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) 238 
for any one item or group of items, to set its fair market value, and to convey title to the property for the 239 
county in accord with the regulations; and 240 
 241 
WHEREAS, the Camden County Commissioners have determined it to be in the best interest of the 242 
Unified Government of Camden County to delegate to the County Manager the authority to dispose of 243 
surplus personal property in accordance with G.S. 160A-266 as amended. 244 
 245 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Camden County Commissioners, Camden County, North 246 
Carolina that the County Manager is hereby authorized to: 247 
 248 
SECTION 1 - Establish regulations designed to secure for the county fair market value for all property 249 

disposed of and to accomplish the disposal efficiently and economically. 250 

 251 

SECTION 2  - Declare as surplus, personal property valued at less than $30,000 for any one item or 252 
group of items, set its fair market value and present to the board for consent to the 253 
disposal of such by any means appropriate to obtain fair market value in accordance with 254 
G.S. 1060-266 as amended. 255 

 256 
SECTION 3  - Keep a record of all property sold and that record shall generally describe the property 257 

sold or exchanged, to whom it was sold, or with whom exchanged, and the amount of 258 
money or other consideration received for each sale or exchange.  259 

 260 
Adopted this 5th day of October, 2015. 261 

 262 

 263 

Consent Agenda 264 

 265 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 266 

presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 267 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 268 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 269 

 270 

 271 

Consent Agenda 272 

Item 6.A - Draft Minutes – August 3rd, 2015 273 

 274 

 275 
Consent Agenda 276 

Item 6.B - Budget Amendments – BA006 277 

 278 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina that the following 279 
amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 280 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   8 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

 281 
Section 1. To amend the General Fund Public Works Department as follows: 282 
 283 
Account Number  Increase Decrease 284 

105450-502000  Salaries  $1,224 285 
105450-545000  Contracted Services   $1,000 286 
105450-557000  Miscellaneous   $ 224 287 
 288 
This Budget Amendment is made to increase the salaries budget for Public Works Director’s certification 289 
at 2% increase per Personnel Policy. Per the FY 15-16 Budget Ordinance, no amendment may be made to 290 
the Salaries line without board approval. 291 
 292 
This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 293 
Balance in Contingency $40,000.00 294 
 295 
Section 2. Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the Governing Board and to 296 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 297 
Adopted this 5th day of October, 2015. 298 

 299 

 300 
Consent Agenda 301 

Item 6.C - Operation Santa Claus 302 

 303 

Caswell Developmental Center has been enhancing the quality of life for persons with 304 

intellectual and developmental disabilities and their families since opening its doors in 305 

1914. We look forward to continuing our tradition of spreading Christmas cheer and 306 

hope that you will join us by making a $75.00 contribution to our 2015 Operation Santa 307 

Claus Project. 308 

 309 

 310 
Consent Agenda 311 

Item 6.D - 2015 Breaking the Silence - Proclamation 312 

 313 
County of Camden, North Carolina “Breaking the Silence” On Domestic Violence Day 314 
 315 
WHEREAS, in recognition of National Domestic Violence Awareness Month, and 316 

WHEREAS, Mothers on A Mission Domestic Violence Organization is committed to “Breaking the Silence” 317 

On Domestic Violence in the state of North Carolina, and 318 

WHEREAS, between January 2009 and December 2014 there were 411 Domestic Violence Homicides in 319 

the state of North Carolina, and 320 

WHEREAS, Ninety-five (95) of those homicide victims were under the age of 25 years old, and 321 

WHEREAS, out of the 95 homicide victims under the age of 25 years old, 29 were under the age of 16 322 

years old, and 323 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   9 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

WHEREAS, out of the 411 homicide victims, 34 were over the age of 60 years old, and 324 

WHEREAS, one hundred of those homicides resulted in Murder/Suicides, and 325 

WHEREAS, eighty-two of the 100 counties in North Carolina were affected by domestic violence 326 

homicides, and 327 

WHEREAS, fifty-four of the perpetrators were females and 280 were males, and 328 

WHEREAS, one hundred and twenty-four of the victims were murdered by their spouse, and 329 

WHEREAS, five of the victims were On-Duty Law Enforcement Officers, and 330 

WHEREAS, one hundred and twenty-eight of the victims were murdered by their boyfriend/girlfriend, and 331 

WHEREAS, twenty-three of the victims were murdered by “EX” of their current girlfriend/boyfriend, and 332 

WHEREAS, one hundred and nine of the perpetrators were males under the age of 35 years old and 333 

fifteen were females under the age of 35 years old, and 334 

WHEREAS, North Carolina endured an average of 68.66 Domestic Violence Homicides each year for the 335 

past six years, and 336 

WHEREAS, Mothers On A Mission Domestic Violence Organization will dedicate Saturday October 31st, 337 

2015 to “BREAKING The SILENCE” On Domestic Violence in our state by setting up educational 338 

workshops and booths to distribute informative information to the public, radio and television interviews; 339 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County of Camden hereby officially proclaim Saturday 340 

October 31st, 2015 as North Carolina “BREAKING THE SILENCE” on Domestic Violence Day 341 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HERE UNTO SET MY HAND AND CAUSED TO BE AFFIXED THE 342 

SEAL Of The County of Camden, North Carolina. 343 

THIS THE 5th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2015 344 
 345 

 346 

 347 

Commissioner’s Report 348 

 349 

Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall read the ABC Annual Report for FY 2014-2015 350 

 351 

Annual County ABC Report for Camden County 352 
 353 

Per GS 18B-805(h) since East Carolina Behavioral Health (ECBH) received Alcoholism (ABC) Funds from 354 
your county, we are required to provide an annual report to the board of county commissioners describing 355 
how the funds were spent. Listed below please find the annual contribution from your county in addition 356 
to a brief description of the expenditures that were paid from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015. 357 
 358 
ABC Revenue Received FY 14-15: $ 4,077 359 
 360 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   10 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

*Expenditures related to the above revenue FY 14-15: $ 89,533 361 
 362 
Unduplicated Number of Consumers in your county who received these SA services: 145 363 
 364 
Description of ABC expenditures: County ABC funds were spent for the treatment of alcoholism or 365 
substance abuse. These funds were paid to providers who contracted with ECBH to provide substance 366 
abuse treatment to consumers with an address in your county. Services provided include but are not 367 
limited to the below: 368 
 369 

 Assessment/evaluation 370 
 Outpatient treatment and counseling, including face to face and tele psychiatry and both 371 

individual and group 372 
 Mobile Crisis 373 
 Substance Abuse Intensive Outpatient Therapy 374 
 Facility Based Crisis 375 
 Opioid Treatment 376 

 377 
*Denotes ABC and State funds paid for services for consumers residing in Camden County with substance 378 
abuse diagnosis. This does NOT include Medicaid funds paid for the same.  379 

 380 

Chairman McLain commented on the following: 381 

 5k -  Dismal Dash  this weekend 382 

 The Parks and Recreation Bike Event has been rescheduled for November 7th 383 

 SPCA Rabies Clinic behind the Camden County Administration Building on 384 

October 24th from 3:00 PM – 5:00 PM 385 

  386 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs reported the following 387 

 Attended the Collage of the Albemarle’s “All that Glitters” Gala  388 

 389 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs reported the following 390 

 Attended the NCACC State Executive Board meeting 391 

 392 

 393 

County Manager’s Report 394 
 395 

County Manager Mike Renshaw had the following items to report: 396 

 397 

 Informs the board of the hard work put in preparation of the hurricane. He 398 

thanks the maintenance department for preparing the County Facilities,, Parks 399 

and Recreation for moving and securing outdoor county property, and to Christie 400 

Saunders Emergency Management for providing hurricane updates on the hour 401 

every hour.  402 

 403 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   11 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

Recess Commissioner's Meeting 404 

 405 

SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 406 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 407 

 408 

Call to Order 409 

 410 

Chairman McLain called to order the October 5th, 2015 meeting of the South Camden 411 

Water and Sewer District Board of Directors, at 8:30 PM. 412 

 413 

Public Comments  414 

 415 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs notes the hard work of the Public Works Department is 416 

noticeable. 417 

 418 

Consideration of Agenda 419 

 420 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to accept the agenda as presented. The 421 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 422 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; 423 

no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 424 

 425 

New Business - None 426 

 427 

Consent Agenda 428 

 429 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 430 

presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 431 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 432 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 433 

 434 

A. Draft Minutes – August 3rd, 2015 435 

 436 

B. SCWSD – Monthly Report 437 

 438 

Monthly Work Order Statistics Report 439 

Period: September 2015 440 

 441 

 Submitted Completed Percentage Incomplete 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   12 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

Work Orders Work Orders Completed Work Orders 

Water 

Collection/Distribution 
343 343 100% 0 

Sewer 15 15 100% 0 

 442 

 Water Line: 34 443 

 Sewer Line: 15 444 

 Water & Sewer, same ticket: 3 445 

 446 

Public Works Director Notes/Comments:  Have reviewed ten work orders this month to 447 

ensure work was completed and documented. 448 

 449 

Adjourn 450 

 451 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to come before the 452 

South Camden Water and Sewer District Board of Directors, hearing none, Chairman 453 

McLain adjourned the South Camden Water and Sewer District Board of Directors 454 

meeting and reconvened the Camden County Board of Commissioners Meeting at 455 

8:35PM. 456 

 457 

Reconvene Commissioner's Meeting 458 

 459 

Information from Board and Staff 460 

 461 

The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy of 462 

these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 463 

 464 

 Budget Transfers  465 

 Legislative Bulletin - Sept. 25, 2015 466 

 NC Main Street Center Creates Jobs  467 

 468 

 469 

Meeting Adjourned 470 

 471 

At 8:36 PM, Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to come 472 

before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the meeting was 473 

adjourned. 474 

 475 

 476 

Attachment A



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   13 

Regular Meeting – October 5th, 2015 

 

 

   477 

 Chairman Michael McLain 478 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 479 

ATTEST: 480 

 481 

 482 

  483 

Angela L. Wooten 484 

Clerk to the Board 485 

 486 

Attachment A


	Agenda
	Organizational Meeting
	Election of Chairman to the Board
	Election of Vice Chairman to the Board
	Approval of Bonds
	2016 State Holiday Schedule
	2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting Calendar

	New Business
	2016 McClees Contract - Draft.pdf

	Consent Agenda
	Draft Minutes
	Trillium Playground Contract
	Budget Amendment Trillium
	Budget Amendments – SRO.
	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases
	Tax Authorization to Collect (January Renewals)
	Set Public Hearing – Special Use Permit
	STAFF REPORT


	SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICTBOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Consent Agenda
	Draft Minutes
	Monthly Report

	Information
	North Carolina’s October Employment Figures Released
	TDA Audit
	NC Department of Commerce
	Register of Deeds - Monthly Report
	Library - Monthly Report
	EMS Reports





